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l • 1 A. Right. 

Q. When you ~ - .. before you moved out to · 

3 the West Coast, you lived here in the Knoxville Oak 

4 · Ridge area. 

-
5 A. Yes. 

6 Q. Arid you worked for, what, six years 

7 in and a'~ouncf .. the Oak' Ridge facility? 

a A. Yes. 

9 .Q • And you wore a dosimeter fi.lm 

. " 

10 · badge 
. ' .. 

11 A. · Yes . . 

12 Q • -- every day for six years? 

• 13 A. I . think I was only routinely badged 

14 for two approximately two years I was at the K-25 
.. ,· 

15 facility. 

16 Q. Okay. }IDd do I remember yqu 

17 telling me that you never registered anything on 

18 that badge that worried you? 

19 A. No. No. 

20 Q. so what I said is true, you never 

21 registered anything on .the badge? 

22. A. No' · that worried . me. I did 

23 · register positive .dose on the badge, of course. 

A. 

24 • 25 

Q . Okay·. · It didn't worry you? 

But it didn't worry me. 

J 
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~1.' : <·. st~phen ~aiit,q~t;h_ -. cross .: .·.'.,\ ;} , 

1 ' no' vou know how much ra.diation you . 
..! .. ... 

'1.. Q. 

" 

. 2 .. ~o·~ a:uring that t~~6~ye~r . ~eilpct? 
.. . ~ .. 

3 'A. 
I • , 

>: ~ ci~~er of so m.ii:llr·~~', ·~om~thing like that. 

A . 
.. . ',. 

.. Q. And .a.· milli-rem is/ what is tnat I 

-, · ,, t-=-z~- ~ 7 ·:· '.. . ~ . ' .. . · .. ).,:. · :··9, . one-one ·mill1onth' of . a · rem? 

~- . 
" 
'\ 

:, 
·t· . 

~ . 

9 : f" 
. - .·. \. 

: .. . 
10 

A. 

Q. 
·;' . ; ·. .• J • ' . · .• 

Now; I know that .YOU do.n ' t - - you . 
' 

i i ' • . i~. .: di.oil.it calculate and to . :t:?e. ·fair, you don't feel like 
··,. 

:i3' .. ·: you can calculate "\11~1at Mr. Payne '"S radiation · do~e 

:1~ ::.'7 -. :~~~ at th~ · r~ll~o:~~ but' you wouid agree with ~~ that . 
. ::~· :_ ·I ~ ... }.~·~"":°;. . . •. . ,I ·. . . ,. . ' . . I • • • • 

):5 ;_ : . :'it:: wasn • .t iikei~/ t.o . have been more · than ;10 rem, was.· 

16 it? 

· \ta. ... : 

A. 

Q . 

A. 

I wouldn't care to ans~eJ;"that. 

You don't --

I guess .you're wanting a yes or no. 

20 · : No .. 

·22 

. 23. 

24 

.. 

· ;LO rem. 

' . · 1' . •·, 

-.Q. 

A. 

Not .likely . to .have been more than 

Ye~h, ·r·•m not sure · that;. -- sinGe we . 

' have no .information-; okq,y,- if- you. will -allow me to 
- 5 l . ... .-

. ::ahswer it . a~ · m9re as· unlikely, sure, I '11 answer 

. ' ... ,....-----.·----.. --_,,..-..,...,....,..,.,.------...-------...... --~. ·-----
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. 1 that, · it's uriiikeJ..y to hav·e been '.{o rem . 

2 Q . Okay. 

3 THE COURT : Talking .about -total ? 

4 MR. JORDAN: Yes, sir. 

5 Yeah, . total. 

6 Q. (BY MR. JORDAN) And it ' 's actually 

· 7 1.llllikely to have been even as much as 5 rem, isn't 

a· it? 

9 A. Let's just stay with the 10 rem . 

10 Okay . 
. . '·' 

11 I wasn't going any l ower than 5 .. 

12 ·I 'm not going to 3. ·· and to 2 and to 1, so. let ' s go 
..... 
13 .· back to 5 for a minute. would you agree with me 
... · 

· 14 that it was 1.lnlikely that it was as much as 5 rem?. 

15 

16 

17 

18. 

19 

20 

21 I . t. • 

23: 

' 5 . 

25 

... : 
;·.·· 

. . 
b

. . 
MR. SaAPIRO: I' Di · o J ecting , I 

don't know what the _question asks, what 

period, when. 

THE ;-C©URT: It was a. total 

radiation· he ·would have received during the 

ti~e thatC he may.. have been .. at Witherspoon ·as 

·r ·understand ·it; ·· is ·-that ;cor-rect? · 

MR.: ··.roRDAN : · That's correct. 

Q. (BY .MR. JORDAN) Unlikely as much as 

. A . Artd, ·Mr;· · Jordan, that's a difficult 

Truesdel & Rusk 
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,. '·' ·l :. 

· ~ ~~~phen . ~~n.t9P,);.iJ. ·'"i,. ¢ros.s . , . . ·<~ . ·. . to

1
. 

'· c;fti~stion ·since · we -.'c:ior1•t '. :-~· )e don ·: ~ rea.liy have a . 

:" ciue, h~-ie: a .. c.lh~V.·~h~t . he tdflid have been exposed 
" . ·:. 

·during that peridd .: You. krto~ ; tha.t 's .a . :..:... that-' s a 

. . dl~ ficult . q\.iestion." to ask - - to . an~·wer. 
. ·", !' ' -

I mean I t h e.re . 'was . - - I think that 

1 ( ~ • • c . 

• • : • .. • •. . ·; • • • ~- • !· ... i· : •. . . ,- ~·- . . 
I • ' : . 7 scptpyar'd arid on . t.h~t tra~n that given the right 

j;:i , .. ' . 
;\ 

·: ~frcu~st·ai-;~~~ i'i~~i"i~terriai dose of · io rem to . the 

li.ing· coul·d haye happened ·: Now ~ is it likely? Don't 
. . ,_.·r.·. 

' . 

. .. . ·· :• 

. : . · •. ; . ' 
=~~; ... ,: .~ . ' ·. ; 
.... . 11 

. . ·~- .~~ .. 
Q. 

·:.i: . . 
Just ' bec~use it was th~~e doesri•t 

!." • J:3 . " A. · J~~~;·' b~c~use it was there doesn't 

14 
.. _;' :' 

. mean ~.:. do~sn i t " 100· ·.perce~t mean that he was exposed· 

16 . Q. And .. j1:1st: beca:use . that 1 s a source of 
. ... · 

17 ·:radiat i on sitting over there on the bar and I ' m 

1'8 standing o\.-er he.re, I'm 'in the same room with it, 

1.9 .. but i t 's not exposing me, is it? 

20 
' .. A. Sure it · is, that 1 s · a source of 

2i · r.~ciiut.i~n, tb some 'level . it is absolutely exposing 
.. .. 

.22 . . ; y::J~' to some level. ci'f : ·~a,di~tion . 

. 23 

24 

25 

.Q • . I,.et's say that's a low level 

· exposure· right there. 
. i 

A. Well , the:p. you a r e goin!g to pe 

· T:r:uesde l & Rusk 

._ 
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exposed low~:i:- because : you are further away from it. 

Q. Is that ·going . to .. hurt me? 

A . . Again, it depends on the size of 

4 the source. I have encountered sources in my career 

· :5 t ·h.at you would have been in danger at that distance, 

6 so - -

7 Q. Dose . reconstructions, Dr. Dooley 

8 did a dose r~co.ristruction fo"J; us I and I know that 

.. 9 you have · some ·concerns about ··.some of the assumptions -

ib he made, not hi.s ·methodology : : 

11 A. . Not his · methodology. 

ii Q. 
: - , • . . , .-:::.. ' . . . ,. 

The methodology he used, the 
.. 

13 
.... 

~qliations he ·used, 'maybe the software package, r 

14 don • t know ···...: ~ 

is A. 

16 Q. 

It's pretty standard stuff. 

standard stuff . .-

17 Okay . . So you don't quarrel with 

18 t,~at, . you j _v...st: quarr,~.l ! about , some of his input, I 

19 , guess; . is .th_at;;;· fa_i:t:.?· .. 

2Q. ·~ : : .: . -.:A.. ~, .-.. That ':s ·· .fa,ir .· 

.. ' 

. _;. 

-. , ' ";. 

21. -~ .. . '·· ·. ·, . .Q. ,._._ . ·. :: . ··· , · .Now~· . j~st .generq,l:lY. .and not talking 

22 ! about Dr. Dooley's: dps.e .reconstruct i on,, but would -

23 .yqu . agre~ wi:t;.:h '.me ·· ,ihat .a ::.d9se reconstruction is a 

24 ' 'i.egitimate !.thing t::e . cio in your, profession? 

25 Generaliy yes, it's a legitirnat~ 

Truesdel & Rusk 
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· Stephen Mantooth· - Cross 

l ' thing to do ~ . 
. . 

2 Q. 'Aild there is a program, . a workers' 

3 : compensation progr~m fox:: ;:,ad.i'ation · worke.rs? . 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 ... ·~ ~.i: ... ~~: . 

10 - --< f' ' 

12 

13 

14 

16 

17 

18. 

:1:,9 

20. 

21 

22 

. 23 

24 

25 

A. There is, yes, ·sir. 

MR. SHAPIRO: Your Honor , could we 
. ,'; 

approach · the bench, plea.se? 
r:· . 

(Bench conference out of hearing of jurors.) 

MR . ,SHAPIRO ; . I thought we had a 

motion in limine that they were .'.not going to 

mention any other particular law that has ~o 

application to the FELA, Mr. Jordan. 
·. 

MR . . 00RDAN : Mr. Shapi~o, we did 

have such a motion and I understood that the 

agreement was r' would mention it., I wou'id 

talk_ abo-ut t.he "methodology, . I would not talk 

about its applicability .to .. the ~ayne case · 
. . . 

and I don't. plan 'op talking about any of 

that, nor wol,lld I talk about the fact that 

Mr. Pa:Yne .wouldnothave been e],igibl e for 

compensation under it. r ''m tal~:i..ng ab'o'ut - -:,. 
THE COURT: Just :going · ~o t.alk 

abOUt ffieth<JdOlOgy 1 · ·that 1 $ all WE:1 are go:j_:ng 

to talk . about. Okay . 

MR. S~PIRO ~ so .you a~~ not 'going 

to talk abqut the probability of causation? 

'I'ruesdel &·Rusk 
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Stephen Mantooth - Cross 
~ .. '· 

much . 

.. 
. 2 Q. 500 millirem? 

· 3 A. ' Wh .. t?• . . . a . .. . . 

4 Q. 50.9 mi1lirem? . 
! • · 

' ' 

5 A. It's 500 miliirern to the maximally· 

6 exposed individual, it's a hundred millirem average·. 

7 Q . Do you know if ·M:r.-. Payn:e' s . , . 

8 ! eXposures ever· exceeded 500 millirem? 

'. 

10 

1): 
~ ... 

'.d 

14 

15 

16. 

17 

18 

19. 

A . . r' do 11ot }cnow, n:o. 
. . -~ " .. 

THE COURT: Is that within a 

·certaln time or ls that lifetime or what are 

we talld·~~ --·abouf:? 

A. It''s per year : 
. ' 

THE ·COURT: Per year. 

THE WITNESS: Yeah; per year. 

·MR. JORDAN: May I app~oach 9ne 

more time, Your Honor? 

'. -··.· . "THE COURT: ... ·. 
Ye.s ·. 

Q. (By MR. JORD~) I 'm goi,ng . to. ask 

20 you ab.out an.otJ;ier_ pul:llicatio_n from the ~ealth 

2i : i?'b.ysics Society, Mr. Mantooth, and I' 11 :hand you a 

22; :: copy of the article.: .. :):t ' ,s :_.called ."Radia,ti.on Risk , 

23 .· and ~erspective,. Po~ition Statement of Healt~ . . . . ~. . ·• ·.\ . . ' . . . \ . . . . . . . •·. " . ' 

24 . Physics ~ociety," . adopted January 1996, revised 

2s • A;ugust 2 0·04 . . ~ . . " 

. ~ ' ~. 
~· . .... 

' . '· .. ,;,,, , App. ·1-27 
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Are you familiar : with that one? 

A. .I'm not sure that I am. And let me 

say, these are ava'i1able on line, .r could go look at· 

them if i wanted t0, i~~~ .just that I don't beli~ve 

I've actually read this one. 

Q. Okay. Well, -you're welcome to 

spend as much · time as. ·Y~~ 'd like rea.ding it. 

Let me just read you a sentence and 

see if you agree with what they say, the Health 

.__:gp.ysics Society talking about radiation risk and 

iierspective on the f irf!t page. 

A. Uh-huh. 

Second paragraph. 

A. In italics? 

Q. Yes_, sir. Says "There is 

su]:)stantial and conv~ncing scientific evidence for 

. health risks · fol·lowing high dose exposu:i::e." 

· '' _You would agree with that? 

A. I would .agree with that. 

Q . '-'However, below 5 to 10· rem which 

. includes-occupational and environmental exposures, 

risk of health effects are either too small to be 

. observed .or are nonexistent ; '" 
,. 

Would you agree with that? 

A. I would agree that · they are too 

Truesdel & Rusk 
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·~ .. ,. 

1 ' small to be observed. 
( 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9. 

10 

11 

12 . 

13 

14 

1.5 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q . · ·And are nonexistent? 

A. Weli, since you really .: don't know 

what's causing the health effect down in that lower 

region of exposure ,· r mean, · maybe .... the health effect 

was caused by radiation, maybe it wasn't so I ' ll 

give them that, or .are .nonexistent. 

Q. Okay. 

A . But certainly,. the first part that 

they are to.o small to . be observed, they can't be 

differentiated by e·ffects that are caused by other 
·- .. 

environmental th~n9s .. 

Q. Yeah, I understand . 

But what they ar.e telling us is 

below 5 to 10 rem risk of health effects are either 

too small to be · observe.a or are nonexistent and you 

told me just a minute ago .that, in your mind, it's 

unlikely that Mr. Payne had radiation exposure of up 

to 10 rem, didn't rou? 

A. ·. That .'s what I sa.;:d. 

Q. There's ·one .other statement in 

there that .either · r don't have a blowup for or I've 

lost it. 

It's on the second page. I want to 

ask you about it. 

Truesdel & Rusk 
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.. J ~ • • . • 

'· mean? 
. .. 

' ,.' ... ... · . . : ... . 
' ,· . : 

. ; " . •·· 
. , . .• ·• L· ., 

A. · . M~a~s r~c:f~Cation calised .·b.ealth . 
: •' I 

... ' ., , . . 
' ~-ffects . ·· .. .. 
; ·. ·~ ~-.. . ... . 

I .', 

And a~. A'.t: .says up . there·, it 
~ .7. . • ... -. • 

' ik • ' '" ! •• 

;. -~-~:irnarily . means cancer. 
· • ••. '»'.• ' ! ; ... . · •• ·.• .; •• 

:y;~S I . '"th.at IS •What We are talking .. ~ .. ·Q.. 

. . ~: .-.;_" ~· . ' . :. .. ·-; .. .': ·: . ~- ·. ...> ' ". ' :· . 
· · ci,bout" her.e , · cancer. 

. ,. · . .. • ,; .· 

.' . 
- ,. :; · · T:/. ·· · .. ·. ' '· no you '~gree -~i'th .that sentence, 

·~i~ ~:tr· ; ·~ ~~d.ioge~i~ h~~:i.~b ... ef'fects, p:d~arily. c.a.ncer, .have: 

:~{ :- · ''.i:'l,.· :\§~~ii ' '.d~m.O-h~i~ated in hurriaris through .. epiqemiological 

•·;1 ·'i2• . : :.~ 1;.µdi~s . orily in dose·s. exceeding .· 5 to ·Hi ,rem 

. 'jf3 
. . 

·· ~ de:I;iver~a.' at _high ci"t:)se ~ates~ Below this .dose, 

' i~ 
~ ': 

.. 15 
. ~ .. .. ~ ., ): . 

'; ~p"e~uiativ'e 11 ? ... 
.... :. :. . .. · . .. .. ' 

16 ' ; A. Ab$.Ql\lyely. _: Yes ·. 
' 

i 17 " ·Q. Ana.··-that. last sentence,: 

h::.3. . :::·;,_ epid~m.iologicai studies· have not demonstrated 

l9 

. 2Q.• 

· 21 

24. 

I . . 

- ·'. . . 
r a.dverse health effects ;in indivi~uals. exposed to 

" 1 ; 
. . . 

~ s~~ll dc;;ses, less than 10 rem, delivered, in a period 

... " ". ~ 
: o~ maby years.n 

... . 
. . i"· 

' ~ i:. ' : 

t " . 

:· '• ' ' 

Do you a_gree with that? 

·Yeah, I would ag~ee. i think the 

. key word · is they. hav:en' t demonstrated adverse health 

· ~·~tects. 
· ... . 

.. . . 

. -~ · : .. ::...,.· ·--· ---------------..-.,..--------...-----...... -·~----"' . ' 
:I. rrruesdel ·& Rusk 
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1 Q. And you told us a few moments ago 

. 2 .that it was unlikely in your . mind that Mr. Payne had 

3 · up to 10 rem. Right?· 

4 A. That's what I said, yes. 
: .. " · 

5 Q. You talked a little ·bit about the 

6 Witherspoon facility and I want to touch on that 

7 just a minute. 

8 .Did you tell me when I was with you 

9 out in Washington. that you thought you might have 

10 be~n there? 

11 A. I believ~ I was, yeah, when I was 

12 at K-25 ,_ we .i'.'ere asked to go to a site in Vestal . 

13 

14 

15 

And so memory is foggy·, I . don't remember whet}J.er 

that was the . 90l· f!·ite or whether it was the oth~r 
· ·:. 

site but we b~sicali~ found a Sealink container full 
··:" 

16 o'f drums with uranium tailings. 

17 Q. Okay.. You don·• t really remember 

ia where that . was? 
,•I • 

,., 

19 
' . A. No, I d.on't. 

,• •:, ::• ,., '. • ' • t J I 

20 Q; _ Tpe~e were a couple of sites, 

21 separate and .discreet. sites out there that -- that 
~." ·. . . . 

22 Mr. Witherspoon di d_ .something with.· Right? 
, . . .. ::-· ·. ·. 

'A. ~es . . 

24 
. •: .:· .• .. •,: ~ . : 

The. one we are talking about q. 
. .··.·· 

~kay._ 

... 
25 here is -- is 901 Maryville Pike. 

•.. . . . : . .. Truesdel & Rusk 
..:.~~-. · -, .~\ :: 
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1 A. Yeah, at that po ~tnt it's just 

2 ·identified as, okay , we are going . to look at this 

3 further . . 

4 Q. · Okay. ·Now, how many such discreet 
. , ·- ' 

5 sites of plutonium were 1 there at the Witherspoon 
.... · . 

6 site? 

7 A . In that one report, I believe it 

8 w~s like three out of five samples. in one case, 

9 ,eight OUt Of eight 0Il another I .something like tha't • 

10 Q. Okay. Where were they located; do 

11 , .you know? 

. i2 
·.· .. .A. ·· They . were . surface so'il and I think 

. . 
13 they were in the - ·_· they were actually in the 

14 .11on-Candora triang.le ·area. And this was actually 

15 after all - - a.fter the metal was gone. These 

16 samples were · taken essentially after the site was 

17 cleaned up. 

18 Q. The Candara triangle is a little 

19 triangle of land tha.t 's about .a _half acre maybe and 

20 that's where the trains came in? 

21 A. That 's my unO:ers tanding ,. as . I read 

22. . ,.through the d..ocuments, :;i: find people flip-flop back 

23 and forth but ·r believe for our understanding, the 

24 Candara triangle is the ·part that the railroad 

25 owned .. 

Truesd,el & Rusk 
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•· :st:ephen .. Milrito~tii -:-, .~ross · · ' . l . 

, ;~ .·"· . 
.... .. ·;: ' 

-~~ii·h: '. Pdi.1 that's where Mr, · Payne l 

. - ~ . 
I , . . 

· ~ 
... . 
•· 

' 4 . 

5 
': . . ~ 

~· 

8 

·' 
9 

i6 

.. 11 · 

13 

·i ·: . 
~orked, · 1sn ,· t . it?':'-· 

. · ·: . 
• • r , .. 

t': .· .. . 

': ; . 

. ·• J~i~ss he w~~: 0

off looking for tb,e yard foreman . 

Q. 

... • • • • '·' ··· ·. .. ' .. _ 1 •• • . 

;.th~-l fion:-Caridora triangle, I take that, ·and you tell 
,· ·· . . 
" ::. . . .. . . 

·~:;ie: · t:E " I ' ·m'.~roilg, to mean that it wasn't f ourid in the 

: : }i~~~dor~ triangle? · 
. ' .... ; 
. · ., .. ·· 

·No, · actually, · there were positive A . 
ft ' · •. . 

::;zesults but "they didn't . exceed the t;h.reshold . 
:r 

. •· 

·' .. . · '· -·. 
··I·> 

. · . .. 

Q . 
I·. 

:A~ ... 
. ~. i . . 

.Q .. 

. A. · 

l 

Okay: . Let me redial for a minute. 

Okay·. 
... : 

Are you referring now to · the 

· .. . : . 

In : t~e Candara triangle, yeah, 

15 ,
1

1iP.e there were . - - · .. analytica], results ,were 
' \ . . 

ri · posit;i.ve . for .plutonium but they just .didn't exceed . . . .. 

18 ')·hat ." par~icui~:t study·· f? threshold _: that they were 

19 . . ~ :g,ding t.o do · the lie al th - -. . ~ ' .. . . 

21 

'2~ . 

;i-:. 
1 . ,; 

·.·. 
' . 
·; . · .. 

··i' . 
..... 4 •• 

. . . 
~ •• • J 

~ ! : 

. To get anybody's . attel}tio.n. 

Right. 

Okay. The three that did _ get 

· 23 , .s.o~ebody' s attention because they reached the 

24 :th.reshold, not nece.s~arily being . a hazard b~t. .~ 
·l 

I 

25. · ~j'e:t.ting somebody's ~t,tention, · they were · not in the 
·>·. : '..~.:·: ; . ' · 
,. 

Truesdel & Rusk 
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St~phen Mantooth Cross 

·1 c~ndora triangle? 

2 A. ~hey - were . n9t in the Candara 

3 _triangle . . 

4 Q. Sd you don't have any evidence that 
. ) 

5 Mr. Payne. was ev.er exposed to .those three sites, do 

6 you? 

7 A. To the ones that were in the 

a .non-C\3,ndqra.triangle? 

9 Q. Yes. 

10 A. No. 

11 Q. And it" there were ·,positive ' 'sites in 

12 
.. 

th.e candora· triangle and that's where he. worked, 

·tbey were not of the level to get ··anybody hot and 

.bothered _· about. Right? 

'i '3 

.. 
14 

15 A. Well, not in 200 ~ . 

16 Q. .Right . .. • 

1 '7 A. After the site had been cleaned up. 

18 It 1,s hard to say what it would have been in 1964 or 

19. . '5 • . 
. . . ···· :· 

20 .Q. Because . we. :don It know. 

21'. A. Because .. we don •·t know, that's 

· r±ght=. ; 

23' THE · COURT: · Getting close- to the · 

24 end? 

25 MR. JORDAN: I am, Your Honor, I'm 

I .. • ' ~ • ; '. ' " - Truesdel & Rusk 
. : .. .. 

.· · .: . . " 
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I •\o .. •.,-.- '· . 
:. : · 

i • 
',. ·: .,. - ·. 

. : · :\~ : ... ·. · ... .: ! ; ' : ... 

1 . 

:.:•"!, :~:,{. \1+. ~w.;_ :; . . . : j· ~ ·"· • •. :· • ; · ·~ . ;· .~ ~~ 
I '.m trying to •. shut it down. 

·,. 
I I,; -·.:,'.,-:·' 

.<Brief · pa\l.se .:i ' . ~ . ' I ' 

: : ' 

I •' ~ 
'. ' 

Q. · {BY MR: JORDAN) ,'Zou · know·, .finally, 

:: ~ ··: : :.~r·.;,. M.;i.nt:.ooth, you told u:s. :... _ told . us about the state 
, ·' . ,, 

. . ' .· s·. . : ~- . : • . . ·. _; : . . . . . ·:· • . . · .. : . ' . .. • .. i • ~ . . ; 

· ci~.· Teimessee Departme.nt of .Radiol.ogical Health, they 

. : are ·~.~e.O :age;;icy · i:O:· 
0

th~ state of Tennessee that rs '. . . , 
6 

. . . 
"'· I ' supposed to take care. 0£ everybody in . terms of 

~- ., :, . ~. . . . 
I .. p • • t ' • • , '• 

');~c:liation ·exposure; is that right? 
; .. 

A. ·That's true. I ·think. 
: .' ... 
10 -. • " .Q . Have you had professional 

.. . 

-I i rr·~· ii 
I 

12 time.? ' 

1 • 13 .. A. I ~ouid ~av~ · to · s .ay no·. 

l.~l 6~ay . . · Now, · ih 'all the mass of 

:u~. .. ~~teri'.a.is . Mr'. Sha~ir·a ·sent you, did you see where 

· l .t; the 'i'ennes·see · Department of RAD Health had had quite 

17 'a long and intense interest in the Witherspoon site 

-18 at ·901 Maryv:ille Pike? 

~19 Yes. 

20 ·Q._ They· had been out there sine~ the 

A. Yes. 

1 
23 Q. They had sent health physi~ists and · 

·.•·. 

•• 
24 '. industrial hygienists. apd other investigators out 

there ' to test for radiation exposure, hadn't they? 

T:r-µesdel & Rusk 
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·stephen Maritboth - , cross 

1 A . Right .. 
. ; ... 

2 Q. And they did · tha~ in the '60s? 
. . 

A. i~ . ~he 1 60s ; the '70s. 

4 Q. And th~y did that in the '70s? 
· .. 

5 Yeah. ' 
.• 

6 ,·, Q. And . they did that in the •sos. 

7 Yes . 
.. . 

8 . ~ . Q . .And r guess one of the things they 
;!· 

9 ~w~re looking for is plutonium. 

t ~ . A. .Right;:. 

11 Q. And uranium and anything else that 

12 · w.;i.s radioactive aiid potentially harmful. Right?_ 

1 ' ' • : 

·13 Yes. 

14 :O". Now, · those folks at the Tennessee 

is :,t.Je'partment of ·k_An· Healt•li k~ew "tliat there was a 
,·, '. - .. . . ~ 

16 ·. :ra.:ilroa;d: out ·there;: · diO.n' t they?.· .. 

. ·l7 . · . A • . . t 'm _sor;ry . 

18- . . " 
_i· .. . Q. They.": knew that there .was a. 

19 '. ·r ,a:ilroad? . . 

.. A. :·: · : Oh, yeah :"-. . : 

They knew there was railroad tracks 

:;and.. they knew - .~hat the ·railroad crews wou_ld come in 
... , 

23, · :a:rld :.switch :·tpere, periodically . as · ..;e said. 

'· ' 
2.;l . Mr. Mantooth, do ' you have any 

25. . E7:'i~dence .. that at any . time · in t~e 1960 ' s o:t the 
~j:' \°': • ' • I:;:.~ ·:°~ '" . .. >r~•: ·,;, •• •('J : ~ '~; ~~~ 

: :.:•' ;' .,"',:. :..'.~;' " I : . . " .••• : "' " ;1... " ':' • ~ '':' ', ·; ', .. •: .. : : : 

:· :. -~ ·\ .•.. 

,•• . .' 
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Stephen Mant'ooth - ·cross 
. . -

.1970 's or the ... 19ao·· s : .i.nybody. from•~the Tennessee 
(. . 

. ~:. . . . 

·n·epartment of . Radiological _Health even so -much as 

· ·:::i;,icked up t:he telepp~ne and ~alled somebody at csx . . . . 

:and saiq, fellows, · you got a ·problem with radiation 

:wfth your crews, di,ci ·they ever say anything like 
.. 

· .tllat to them? 

A. There were I did see things 

where there : w~re -c~mmunicatiops between the 

·:ii~:Partment of Health and c~ - - OT CSX, I can It 

:-.t.'ecall any specific, lik'e, . warn:i,ng or anything 'eise 
.. .. ... 
1·'· ·\· ..: 

· ·that had to do wi'~h . the hazards to the . railroad. 

Q. What you're talking about, and tell 

-'tn~ if I'm wrong, were communications between the 

, .+ailroad and the RAD Health people involved a 
. . ·. 

ge:.ntleman by the name of Paul MayJ.tard ~ -

A. That was one. 

Q. Who was a foreman · at the railroad 

who called them and said .tell me if I have got a 

_problem out here. Right? 

A. That, as well as Mr. Freeman and 

Mr .. Badders were in communication as well back · in 
., 
·the 'sos. 

Q. But you don't find any evidence 

~hat the state of Tennessee ever told the railroad 

;they hao · a radiation problem or th~.t. its crews had a 

Truesdel & Rusk 
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1 radiation problem, did you? 

2. A. I did not, no. 

3 Q. You .don't find any evidence that 

4 .the investigators for RAD Health that were out there 
. . 

5 for a couple of decades ever said to the railroad 
. . ' . 

6 you got such a pr~blem, you g~t to quit . coming here, 

7. they. never said that, did they? 

8 A. No, I don't be.l ieve they did. 

9 MR. JORDAN: Thank you·. 

10 .. THE WITNESS: You're welcome. 

11 REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

12 . t3y MR. SHAP:!RO ·: . 

13 Q. Mr. Mantooth, I promise to this 

14 jury three minutes or less, okay? . 

15 In the first 20 years Mr. Payne was 

16 ·there, did he ever get.provided a simple film ~adge? 

17 A. . No, tbere ' s no records to that . 

18 Q. And· when you . talked a:Pout the . . 

19 regulations th~t you ~aid you felt .were not complied 

20 with, would it matter whether the railroad had 

21 gotten -- I'm .sorry, I got to · figure out how to word 

22 the question . properly. 

23 

24 

25 

Let me start this over. 

Did the railroad ever produce a 

bill of lading from any shipment from Oak Ridge to 

Truesdel & Rusk · . 
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Stephen Mantooth Redirec~ 

·1 Q. Could. they have put a car not at 

·the front of the train that had contaminated scrap 

3 in it? 

. 4 A. Yeah, or you knoi:J .. ~- - . 

5 Q. Yeah. T6is' -io ~illirern or 10 rem , 

6 I really don't know what it means, I'm not sure 
.. 

7 .~ziyone here do.es, but let me ask you this, one trace 

- 8 ·cif_ plutonium th-~t' came 0°f f ·~-ne piece of scrap at the 
... · 

9 ·witherspo-o:ri site , was tl:).at enough' to be a health 

10 

li 

12. 

13 

· ~hazard? 

A -. It may be low but it could be 

enough and I'm glad you brought that up. The 10 

rem, I'll be short, the 10 rem essentially is a 

14 level where we have clearly demonstrated health 

15 effects. - The· bel·c;;~; _.the s rem pie.ce is - - it 

16 doesn't mean -there's not ... a: hazard or there's no 

17 --e 'ffects, it ': ju'st means you -can ' t tell them, we are 

18 ' talking about Cancer I you Can It tell it·' frQffi What 

19 . happen's naturally . - Doesn It mean it doesn It happen , 
. . -

20 so , I mean, each of us sitting here have a -

21 30 percent chance ·of getting _can-cer about and maybe 

22 _a: --:1.6· percent chance of' dying of . it if we never get 

23 
., 

24 

25 

the first rem of r~diatio~ so when you get down into 

_. those l ow levels, :you j~st don't know . You just _ 

_ don't know. So to a~sw-er your que stion, one atom I 

Truesdel & Rusk 
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i~ · \ ! .. -~ · ._ .. . ·: .... ~: --r ~- · .... ..-1 .. ·.:1 .. . . . . _ .. ,._ 1·;:} · 
: ·t 11i~nk may be::'I?are b:.it one 'atom 'could · cause cancer. 
. . · :_. /.~ .. . ~~-':"·: · .~· : .!'··:· .. t· i > ·. ~-.... \. -.. ' -

. · "MR. SHAP+RO : That 1·s al.l my · 
(" .~ .. 

' : 1 · 

• : i, -.: ~' • 

' ':-' 

·'' . ., ";; ,., .... ."' 
. ~quest.ipiis :,. . .. . 

. ~ . . ' : . 

' :---; 

,MR. ' JORDAN: Nothing further. · 

: 
Thank you tor being 

.- .. :· 1 ·:..: 
7 . '! .. · '. here. 

I ·~ · . 

!:.; 
., ·~ 

' ' ... ~t 
.,. 

.-. ·--~ 1i!. · • ' .. .. . .. 
. . -~ ~ l .···-' ·. 

I ~-, ' ~ • 

.... ... . ' 

i.2 
'· ., 

13 
. / ' 

i .4 . , . , .t 

. . . . 

,- · ... "' . ' 

·i ;.6. ' ' 

:i '.? . i!· . .. ': . . 
•.-·. - _r· , 

18. .'ol• .::. ...... 
1• ... 

' 
.19 "-·:··. 

2Q 

21 .. 
~; ' .. 

. 22 
. ' . 
.•. 

23 
. ,: ~ : 

.24· , . ',.: ... --... 
. ... 

~s; ' ' 
' ~·: ~ I' • ' 

' 

.. 

If ' we can try to start at a :·Jo 
•• •. • • ; •• .J:" •.. :.• . · , J I' 

again pi . the .morni?g . · · 
. ' • , ) 

,.'-;. 'or;.~- litt'le .brie,t' · comment. to ·the 
' . 

jury: .·. #h.en. we were .prepa. i ing . to have this 
.. 

·case, r a 'sked the;n ·how .long it wa·s going to 
. " .. ,.,. .,, : ,, , . .. .... . 

. take and ho'w long everybody' wouid . take. You 
• • #. ~ • ~· 

~~~;,"go . ?h~ad,. Mr.. Mantooth. · . . 
" . 

Jµid .. we _are al':i;eady a day and . C3; hal.f 
.... ,; .., 

beh;i.nd schedule ·. now . . 

;· ;r: know we ·got .Thanksgiving corning : . 

.ll.P. You ·all <be thinking about what your . ·. . . 

. wisl:J.es -_ would be: I'm going to try to get .a 

• .. more accurate ~stimate · in · the meantime 

'before· ... tomorrow . about what,1 s left in this . . . 

case . . But :Pe .. thipking . what :yoti would like 

tq" see happen. ~s "far ·as t:-he ti.~e yoti sp!'!rid 

he.re ·iii ·" · c~mr.t .. : . .w.~ get a l .O't of ·options, 

. .. 

' · . j ,ust .. go on,, skip .d,ay~_,; we can come in 'the ·_. , 
·" '. ~ ~ ·. .' .·' - '."'".~f"'.~· 

. ,, 

.. : :~~ .• 's 
~ •', •. J 

'·""'• ·,,, I· 

. ~.. . .. 

. . . 
· Truesdel &; ·Rusk ..... 

I . . ._., 
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Alta Groover - Cross 

1 the railroad~:· 

2 A. Vh-huh, there's just spur tra~ks .. 
3 there. 

4 Q. 
.... -: 

And the deliveries were mostly in 
' . 

5 the afternoon? 

6 A. Yes, as far as I know. 

7 Q. And you · a11 closed at around 4:30. 
. . 

8 A. Yes. 

9 Q. The workers did, true? 

10 , ;. A. Right .. 

Q. But you worked longer. 

12 A. I · WOrked until 5:00. 

13 Q. And based upon your knowledge, did 

14 there come a time ~here Mr. Witherspoon began the . 

15 process of bidding on scrap metal from Union 

16 Carbide, for example?· 

17 A. :Yes, that was in the 60's. He bid 

18 a lot. We got a lot of material f.rom Union Carbide 

19 whether it "".as contaminated or not. 

20 Q. In other words, you were in the 

21 business of scrap ·metal. 

22 A. Right. 

23 Q. We reviewed those records. 

24 You had some records of sales, and 

25 the first sale of metal to Mr. Witherspoon was 

Truesdel & Rusk 
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.; ~lt a .Groove.:r.:", ,1j;;\;\,Cr,Otis .. . .: . , .. . ,, <Ji 
-.. -... 'j ,. _.._,_ __ ...,..._..,._ __ .-, --------~---

_ ·'~~~etlme." i~ ·· {~~:r .·~-~ : 

- ' :. A. . ii~~ · ·: 

.Q. 
. '.: ... 

· Ail~ ,the · .first deliv~ry of · th:Ls low 
: .'h• 

'.,, .g·rad,e metal was iri· ·J..9;5'*. ., ... 

. ' Q . 
·.- . . 

.And t,hen the. last delivery of this 

, r .. 
" I .;,. 

. : . .. ~ .. 
Yes, 

. !.'>.'' 
"· ··· •, I . 

A. 
· ·:; ;· .°.r I' , , .. ' :. . , 

That's correct. 

. . 
; 

Q .• So betw'eeri 1964 and 1972 you all 

. i..were "'in the· b:usine'ss . of 'this" low ;:rrade radioactive -

~ ';.'~ ' .· . . . 

• •: sur.~q.ce . 9ontaminat;ed met'<?-1, .true? 
.... . ( ·. : . ~ · . . ~ 

.A. 'that .' s correct . 
. ;:; ,· '. \ . 

What is Whit~ Wing? 
. . . . ~~ .... ~ ,:.~ .. 
Q. 

Ii.• .• . 

· '. . l4· . . ,•, : A, White Wing wa~ a yard at Oak Ridge 
. I 

. ~ . . . ~$' :l'where . t~~Y stored· ··t:tie contaminated metal. · 
" •· · .. : , . . . ... ~ ~· .. 

.16 .. ·.r Q. · wa$-. that a gathei:·ing place . fo+ like · . . . 

:p . ,'y·<\~·~ .an;r:l:';K"".25 and ORNL? ·: · They would bring a.11 of 
. . .. · t . 

+a· :.'t;'li~fr ineta·l'· ... ,to. this.· place. 
. ' 

l .. ~ A. I think it was, but I'm not - -

There was a smelter out there, I 

22i . . · ·~·· ·: ·" .A. 'I'here was a. - - it was just a yard, 
' ·I • 

' 2:1>' . , ·QnC::, w.e moved a crane . in.:·and loaded . some of the 

·material that he haq · baught . 
,. 
' ' 

. 25, \ · . .. , . ·· There was not a : railroad siding out . ,' ~ 

.. / .1., :... :J__:_·_.. ·.··..:.-· ·-· . •• 
~; . -::-.-:· ·; ...;;.;_;_,_;.:.-;.....-..:.--....:,.----------.----........ ---..--------' 
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Alta Groover - Cross 

ther~, apparently. 
.. -, 

A. No, there was not a railroad 
•.J 

siding. 

Q. · So all of the metal that was 
',• I• 

· delivered to .White Wing would have been taken to 

your place of business by truck. 

A. That's correct. 

Q. Okay. Now,_ you've told the jury 

about this low grade material through these 

·licenses; and if we looked at the licenses - -

THE COURT: Maybe the jury has 

them. 

1074 

.. ·. 

' MR. BAKER: I'll just use a sample 

one. That's okay. Keep them. 

Q. (BY MR.· BAKER) These licenses · 

provided that· these folks. at Unior!·' Carbide or Marbi.n . . . . . / 

Marietta or any nuclear facility, they promised you . . . '·: . 

. that the~. would p::p:)y~~ .de this metal and it would be 

very . low .grade. . _·,: .. 

A . . .'J;'he;lb'.s. correct. 

Q. 1\J:1,d · they were the people who were 
. ·:·.: 

selecting. the metal. :that .: was low · grade; i .s that 
· .. ··· ' 

tr.µe? · .. . . - . . . 
·.A. 

Q. 

·;.,_··· ;- . ·- .. ···. -.~ . 

.. , . 
·•: f.'i : .. · : ~·:· :. "· . i ... • . ~ '·. :··· 

Ub-:hul:i. 

And yo~ . relied on them to provide 

· · Truesdel · & · Rus!~~·' · 
. ... ~ :~t~· . 

• \ .~ I 

'.·· -; ., 
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A. 
. \: " . . ~ .. . . 

Yes,. our contrac.t stated the . amount 

of s\lrf:p..ce co~tq.rnl6.a."ti~n ·.that · it . would. contain. 

Q. Okay. And -they were the ones who 

.· ·;·w<~re : · aoi.ng t:·~~ - - ·~. t .hey_ t"~sted the met?-1. 

A. ki~~~~ . , . 

Q .. And . you relied upon their expertise 
I• • 

t.6 ·do the testing. 

A. Yes. 

Q. And that would be Union Carbide, 

, Department of Energy or ·any one of these places who 

:_ :was ... responsible for the metal. 

.. A. That's ·right. 

.. r. i 

· ... Q. And then will they would load it on 
. . fs .t;.hese rail carries, correct? 

. A. They would ·-- .yes, it would either 
. . 

17 ·be loaded on a rail car or truck, depending. 

18 Q. · . . Some of the metal was delivered by . 

19. rai1 .. anq_· "it was, for example, Union Carb_ide or one 

20 · of £hese · othe; pl~cas, tbey we~~ th~ sh{ppers and 
., : . 

21 they ·would to the loading ·on to the ·railroad cars. 

2
:.., •.. . ,.. 

23 

24 

25 

A. .Yes . 

Q. And then . the metal, on occasion, 

' would be shipped by rail to your place of business. 

A. Yes, that 's correct. 

Truesdel & ~usk . 
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~ 

.9. Now, you've-told us that in 1972 
/ '\ . 
you received youi' ' last shipment, and that was when 

· the · last metal wa~ brought in .. 

' "reii the ju~y or give the jury some 

idea of whether this metal, this low grade 

rad:i,oactive metal, was a large part of your 

btislii~ss I "a.· Sffi~
0

ll : ~~rt '.Qf your business or what. 
. " 

A. 
. ; . .: '• • I , 

It was a small part of the business . 

becau.se we had all of our contain:::r scrap, plus the 

scrap that we purch~sed across our scale. Also, he 

did demolition where he would tear buildings down 
... 

for the steel and so forth. 

Q . I believe you told us that this was 

. about five percent of your business. 
!' ~. : . 

·Five to ten perc~nt, I would say. A. 

Q. Ok~y .. · .. :And during 1964 to .1972, you 

a:l .l : cont"inued . in the bus~ness of processing and 
( 

. receiving thi"s non.::contaminated metal as you had 

done before. .·, ·.· 

Yes. 

Q. Now, then after 1972, this business 

A. 
.. _.,:.··. 

Yes, it did. 

Q . In ·othe·r words, you all continued ~ 

to receive ra:il cars with metal that was 

+ruesdel & Rusk 

·····. ···. · .. · .·:-;:; 
:::1 .. :.· •; .• . •.· 

. .. .. . App.=. 142c . , ' . . 



1• 1 

2 

3 

4 

·' 
5 

6 

7 

8 

.. 9 

!Eo 

11 

12 ,. 13 

14 

I ... 
15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

2 9. 

21 

22 

23 

24 • 25 

. I 

1077 

Alta Groover - Cross 

non-contaminated. 

A. Yes. 

Q. And then you continued to receive 

empty rail cars that would come in so that you coul.d 

'f:Lii them {.ip. with ·. the . non-contaminated metal and 
\ 

send them out to all . of these mills that you were 

talking about. 

A. That's correct. 

·Q . That's how you made money. 

A. Uh-huh. 

Q. The mills would pay you money for 

the metal. 

A. Yes, we went . through a broker. 

Q. so. if a rail car was delivered to 

you, · say from 1972 on·, there would be no radioactive 

material in that rail car .. . · ... 

A. That·' s correct. 

Q. And before 1972, you all rec~iyed 

plenty of empty · cars tha_t · had no metal in them so 
.. . ~ 

~hat . you · coul_d use them t9 fill them up with metal 

to ~end them to these mills. t 

A. Yes .· 

O:. Now these licenses, when we look at 

th~ licenses, the various license~, those were 

contractual agreements between Witherspoon and the 

Truesdel & Rus;:;' ~ 
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Alta Groover ,:- _Cross ' .... 
. 't 

it was. 

2 Q. 'oo you have ·~ a memory -- this is 

3 difficult. · I .mean, it's been a l~ng time . 

4 . ·~ -
Do you haye a memory of his being 

5 
'• ! • , • . 

out t~ere . on your property for like an entire 

several month period of time? 

7 
... ... . 

A . . 
~ ; : : ' .. He could· have been . He was there a 

8 lo.t but I don't kilow, · you know, whe.ther it was for 

9 months at a time. 

10 . ., Q. · And you •ve told us about your 

11 health physicist, Mr. · ~ields. 

'1'2 A. Yes .. . 

13 
. . 

" deceased isn't he? . . Q. He's now, 
; 

A. I honestly have ·!'~Ot had any contact 

15 with .him for the last 15 or 20 years, so 

16 Q. Did there come a time when some 

17 . publicity developed there in the early toroid SO's 

18 ·~here the railroad stopped ·delivering cars to the 

19' 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A. Yes. 

Q. ' -- to your property? 

A. Yes·, I think in 1985 they decided 

to -- that they wo~id bring the cars up to the gate, 

and then it was our· responsibility to bring them 

into the yard to load the · - - you !mow, so tha.t they · 

would be ready for loading. 
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Alta Groover - Cross 
.... 
1 Q. That gate was. located over there at 

2 the · Candara Road ,.crossing. 

3 A. . . Right, ·t:iii-huh .. 

4 Q. Because right next to you was the 

5 marble company . 

6 What was the name of that company 

7 right next to you? There was some sort of cement 

8 _company, wasn't there? 

9 A. oh, Tennessee Asphalt. 

10 Q. Right . Right there . 

11 A. Yes. 

12 Q. If I can just take this, I'm going 

13 to circle · T·e~essee Asphalt. That was just right 

14· :r;iext to you. 

15 A . Yes. 

16 Q. And t~en over -- then there's 

17. Candara Road. I've circled that . 

·18 . A. Uh-huh. 

19 Q. And : they stopped there at ~andora 

20 Road before they c.ame. into the property. 

21 A. Right. 

22 . Q. And they would just drop the cars 

2~ . there, and .then -it . would be your ·company's job to go 

out there and use some sort of device and pull . them • 

25 in. 

·t 
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Terry Rhodes - Direct 

1 not, that you sent to me? 

2 A. Yes, · some hand sketches, yes. 

3 Q. Let me see if I can find them. 

4 May~e you can first of all I shared these with 

s defense counsel before the depos,i.tion and I marked 

6 th~se 2-A through I think G. ·Are all these your 

7 handwriting? 

8 A. Yes, they are. They are my 

9 handwritings. 

10 

1], 

12 

13 

14 

15 

Q. Why did you .do these? 

A. I did these again,.,when you talk 
. . 

about loop holder and you talk about air compressors 

and you talk about engines. r· am · quite familiar with 

them, but I am sur~ · yo~ people iri ~hi~
0

room ar~~·~. · 

Aiiyone who would be listening to this deposition 

16 would not be familiar with them. 
;.,.. 

17 Q. Okay, let .'s talk about briefly 2-a, 

18 you got it's a little small, I hope the 

19 videographer can get .in on this. Is one a top view 

20 and one a side view or what are we looking at? 

21 A. You would be looking down at the 

22 top of the locomotive. This is s~pposedly a top 

23 view and this would give you a side view. 

24 Q. And so you --- just briefly can you 

25 tell any areas that you just recited that you 

Truesdel & Rusk 
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Te:try Rho.des Direct . .. ·' .' '""'· - ..... --~---....... -------------.............. '1-------------
1 • 1 remcived ~sbestos from on a typic~l engine? 

.2 A. tes, the radiator would have sat 

3 ~ov~ the air compre.ssor ·compartment and over top of 

4 · this area of the locomotive .. The line. would have run 

5 ; overtop .:of this area .and ' hooked to each side of the 

·6 . loop . holder . 

7 Q. And what kind of line, is that a 

8 pipe? 

9 A. That is a pipe, and I would say 

10 that pipe is · roughly .three inches. 

11 Q. Anything ·else on this diagram here 

12 that you want to 

1- . 13 A. You have asbestos there, the air 

14 compressor feed line would be on the. top of the ·air . 

. 15· compressor. It rolled over and it come over like 

16 this and arou,nd. It was like an S pipe. And it 

17 ·hooked into what we·had, · I called it a temperature 

18 gauge on the loop holder rack, right behind the loop 

rg · holder rack. 

·20 Q. Where is the crew in relation to 

21 this drawiing? 

22 A _. The crew would be.in this area up 

23 here. 

24 • 25 

Q. . Okay. Well, t ·hat area that you are 

poin~ing. to are nowhere near them. What is the 

Truesdel & Rusk 
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Terry Rhodes - Direct 
( ~ 

significance of that, if anything? 

ll4Q 

A. ·This · · these · a.reas .. here ar.e all.. 

3 ' friable. These materials · t~at were · used in these 

4 particul.ar areas, all between the · engine and the 
. ' 

5 'asbestos used over top of the · 100.p holders and off 

6 the air compr'essors' was a: wrap, asbestos wrap that 

7 became friable. 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

' 1 

i4 
··i 

15 

16 

17 

18 

Q. But what does that nave to do with 

the crew cab . on ' the other side of the engine? Go 

'aheac;l sir. 

A, Okay, what it has to do is when 

: these things become friable and these materials 

thi.s - - - you have to ·underiiitand a locomotive 

vibration when you have them nmn.ing . . These .. asb.;stos : 

' f ib-~rs would be rel.eased" and ' 'they would move 

· th;rbughout this area:: _and· t .hey .are connecting to the 

crew cab. 

Q. Well, let me see here. Here 'is 
. ' 

19 another drawling, ·2-b, this is anoth,er drawling that 

20 you done, what if anything is being shown here of 

· 21 any relevance? 

.2~ A. AS to ·--

23 Q. As to asbestos? 

. 24 A. This would be . your cab area. And 

2$ these are your seats, three seats across. There 

Truesdel & Rusk 
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. ' 
Terry Rhodes .. -:. _riirect 

"\ .. 
; ·would .be· a cab . heater here, · in . front of the eng.ineer 

;;eat;:'; th,is would °l;>e the e'ngi'neer seat in front of 

'. the c:::ontrol stand. ·This · would be brakemen or fireman 

. seat ,whichever you would choose to . . These .cab 

lieaters iiad asbestos . that ran through the floor,. · the 

pi,pi:r;ig iian through the floor and up to the cab 

. riJ.e.i~~r floor. 

Q. ·. ' · Okay. . ·:For tho.se of us who are not 

; ¢n ·engiries and are not familiar with them, · what do .. . . 
· ypu ; rnea.n; what does a cab heater do? 

1}.. A ·ca:b heater is it is the same 

· a·s ~: furn.aGe in your horn~, it is heating d€vice to 
.; 
. ~ 

·, supply heat for the crew . in t _:p.e cab~ 
, '':"' 

Did -the typical cab heater have any '. Q. 
I, 

: fan : cont·rol? 
. . 

A. Yes, it .had a three speed fan. 
... 

· Were· the cab heaters on these Q . 
. !· ·-

cla~~ses of . engines tl:iat · you worked on, was it forced 

· ~i~ , dr radiant air? .. · : .. .. . · '•, 

A. They are forced air. 

Q. Did it· ·have a ·:dial so · a crew member 

2 2 · ~couia :turn the dial? ·· 

'23 . ,._, ' . . · 
t ... 

A. Yes, there would be a dial on the 
i 

24 left ·hand side of . the tab heater itself. 

. 25 ' Q. \Okay. -That is another little scirt 
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Terry Rhodes - Direct · 

of a view of a cab heater? 

A. Yes, . this is a view of a cab 

heater. Similar to what they would look like on 

TP9's, 30's, 35's, had them. 
· ' 

Q. Okay, let me go here. Here is 2-c. 

What are you drawling here? 

A. This is an overhead view of what 

the piping would look like running underneath the 

cab floor of the locomotive if you can see through 

the . cab floor . This is the piping diagram of the cab 

heater piping. There was a feed and return line to 

both cab heaters, and this would be wrapped in 

asbestos. 

Q. How many feet long is those pipes, 

I mean , this .is obviously not in any particular 

scale here. How many feet are we . talking about? 

A. You are talking over all length of 

those pipes would be I would estimate somewhere 

between ·10 - 12 feet . 

Q . Okay, well let me see. A 2-d, what 

21 is this? 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A. This is what I was talking about 

earlier. These cabs heater lines, these are cab 

heater lines going up to the floor . There was a 

floor inside the heater itself, it looks like 

Truesdel & Rusk 
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Terry Rhodes - Direct 
i 

· ·' 
1 rad~ator. If you wanted to know what a cab heater 

2 floor is, it looks like the radiator in your car and 

3 these are your pipes that come up through the floor 

4 and connect there. These pip.es would be wrapped in 

5 asbestos there. 

6 Q. well, would you personally handle 

7 removing asbes~os insulation from those pipes? 

8 A. Yes. 

9 Q. Wouid you have to take some sort of 

10 any type ·of cover off the cab heater to get in 

11 there? How would you get access to the pipes? 

12 A. This has a ~hield~ that fits like 

13 this, it is molded to the front of the cab heater. 

14 And ,you would remove that shield and then you break 

15 these marmons loose and you can remove this core 

16 from the inside of the cab heater. 

17 Q. Okay, in the times . --- you 

18 personally did this type of ~epair? 

19 A. (Indicates). 

·20 Q. . You are nodding, can you say 

21 verbally yes or no. Did you do this type of repair? 

'22 A. Oh, I am sorry, yes I did. Yes. 

23 Q. Okay, when you would take the heat 

24 --- I'm sorry, a heat snield or the metal cover off, 

25 would you observe what was going on inside of there? 
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Terry Rhodes - Direct 

1 A. Yes·, ,. you have what looks like to be 

2 . asbestos residue from again, this.was friable 

3 asbestos in· these areas . on older locomotives. And 

4 what you would see is residue build up inside this 

s cab would be laying down here and you would see it 

6 in . the front or the back of the cab heater shield 

7 when you took it off. 

8 Q. You never worked as an engineer or 

9 a c·onductor on engines, did you? 

10 · A. No sir, I did not. 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

23 

24 

25 

Q. You wouldn't normally be riding 

with them when they did their work, woulq you? 

A. No., I woulc;i not . 

Q. How do you kn,ow if there is 

vibrations inside engines? 

A. We . run locomotives in the test 

shed. And they run at full throttle for eight hours 

a day to be· tested. 

Q. Were there any vibrations? 

A. They definitely vibrate, yes. 

Q. Okay. Let me go to the next one 

here. Here is a -dia$r_am here, it is real small. What 

is going in this what are you showing here, 2-e? 

A. Let me look at this · carefully. This 

·is it is, I am tryins to see. I am trying to reap 
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1 · the .writing and I . can't read it from this angle. 

2 !s it your driwing? 

A. .Yes·,· :it ·is my drawing. And it 

4 looks like --- what it is, it ' .s a.nother diagram of 
. i 

5 ,how ~ ~ab heater .piping is set up underneath the cab . 

6 

7 

9 

·.·. 
.. ·, 

Q. All right, 2-f, what is -. this? 

This is a --- · if you were sitting 

c;lowµ in a short nose · of a locomotive and looking up 
. ' 

.· ~nto · the cab, ·this is_ a two step area that goes up 

10 ·int¢> the cab. This would be the cab heater on the· 

.\. "ll 

12 

13 

... 
15 

16 

· ~ack : wall if you can · see through this wall that 

:would have been h.'ere. Arid this would ·be the ca:O · 

'. heater on theengineer side. This is the toilet 
. l 

··.area. And ~his area here on the 3.0 and ) 5 was open 

· to . t he air brake compartment ther~ .. 

Q. Did some engines have two cab 

17 heat;:.ers and some ·have less · or more? 

J,.8 ... A . Ail "the loc.omotives .that I . have 

i9 . eyer·: worked on had ·two cab h·~aters. 

20 Q. And did those, were those the HVAC 

21 or the heat system for the crew cab? 

.A. Yes. · 

: Q .. · To get the air blowing into the . ·, 23 

24 - crew·: cab, . could one cab heater basically supply the 

·25 air' ·fo::- the. entire crew cab? · 
'' . 

~ ~ .i . . ,,..; . 
. · ·· . 
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Terry Rhodes - Direct 

A. In the northeast sector I would say 

_probably not. 

Q. Anything additionally to add in 

3-g, the last sketch you provided? 

A. 'I'.his would be a side view of what 

a - ~ if you were looking from the side. Again, this 

is the short nose area of the locomotive, this would 

.be the cab. There was a water cooler down on the 

lower deck. 

Q. Does the water cooler or toilet 

have any asbestos insulating material? 

A. These areas had no asbestos 

insulating material. The material would be 

underneath this cab floor and going to your cab 

.15 . beaters . The area here that you are looking at, is 

16 always open. It · is open to th~t air brake 

17 compartment whic:::h is _what we call .' that area 

18 l,lilderneath the cab floor . 

19 Q. What is significant about that, 

20 sir? 

21 A. That is significant because if you 

22 have dam.aged asbestos underneath this cab . floor. 

23 The ' fibers can also move through the air floor in 

24 

25 

this area .and enter the cab . 

Q. What is 2 -h showing sir? 
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Terry Rhodes - Direct: 

·A. A 2-h, I gave that to you and again 

. it .is nothing more th$n to ' identi°f.y for those who do 

not k:now what I am talking about. I ·say marmom · 

· couplers or 0-Dots, they are just · rough diagrams of 

what' we .' would be looking at. 

Q. Is it a value? 

A. The 0-dots is an actually a 

. thermostat. 
f 

. Q. Are · these parts contain~d ins.;i.de 

10 the ·cab heater? 

11 

12 

13 

J,4 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

is 

A. ·These parts · are contained in the 

cab · heater piping tha·t goes to the heater. 

Q. Now did you also supply I believe 

, it was a total of 17 photographs? 

A. Yes, sir. 

· Q. And are these photographs that you . 

too~ yourself? 

A. Yes, I '·did . 

Q. · Before I ge.t ahead of myself here . . 

I want to move to int.reduce all . of those sketches, 

2-a through, that you have just identified .. We will 

go organize them in a minute. 

Can you look through 21, . 1 through 

17, .did you look through them before the deposition? 

A. . Yes. 
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Terry Rhodes - Direct 
~ . 

1 Q. Are those the pictures .that you 

2 just outlined that you took yourself, Mr. Rhodes, 

3 except for one I believe which you are in the 

4 picture? 

5 A. Yes, these are pictures that I took. 

6 in 2002. 

7 Q. Okay, I want to go through what if 

8 anything that you want to describe about these 

9 pictures, okay. And I have on the screen here, 

10 Number One. What are we looking at here sir. 

11 A. Picture 21-1 is a picture of the 

air brake compartment underneath the cab floor. 

13 Q. Is that helping t::·o orientate where 

14 some of the stuff is that you were talking about? 

15 A. That is correct. When I say the 

16. asbestos piping runs underneath this, this would be 

17 the cab .itself. This side of the. locomotive would be · 

18 the brakeman side and the other side would be the 

19 engineer side. This is the area directly below that 

~o cab. 

21 Q . And I am sorry, does the cab heater 

22 pipe enter the floor of the engine. in this area? 

23 A. The cab heaters p i-pes · on . this 

24 particular model have been --- have already been 

25 taken out and abated. But they would come out up in 
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Terry Rhodes - Direct 

1 

2 

this area and one of your cab heaters for your 

brakeman side would be over here on a 38. The pipe 

3 would run to here and then would cross over to the 

4 engineer side and go up also into the engineer cab 

5 heater. 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 64, okay? 

MS. YOUNG: 61, 25. 

THE WITNESS: Where? 

MR. SHAPIRO: 61, 25. 

Thank you. Actually we're going to 

11 Q. And in 21-13, what is being shown, 

12 is that another view of the same? 

13 A. That is another view of the same 

14 type ·and as you can see it gives you a closer view 

15 of the damage to the asbestos and the fraying areas 

16 · on it. 

17 Q. We talked about a -lot of classes of 

18 engines, GP38 's., EMD, SD40 's, were engines used for 

19 --- how long were engines in use generally that were 

20 coming into your repair shop? 

21 A. Railroads get as many miles as they 

22 can from a locomotive as they could possibly get. 

23 GP38's are still alive and well on the railroad. 

24 

25 

GP40's, 45 excuse me, SD40's and SD45's are 

still around. 
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Paul Maynard - Cross 

Ridge, if it was railroad cargo, .i.t came through 

that ·Spur, didn't it? 

1500 

A. It came from that spur when I was 

4 there, yes. 

5 Q. And you've heard other evidence, 

6 some of the stuff was probably brought by truck. 

7 Right? Not all of it came through"·here. Right? 

8 A. You mean Witherspoon? 

9 Q. Yes, sir. 

10 . A. I would say that from my 

11 

12 

13 

14 

knowledge of Witherspoon, he probably received more 

of his stuff by truck than --

Q. More by truck. That's all right. 

So you knew that that spur that I 

15 just showed you was closed down sometime in 199 --

16 MR. BAKER: May I have a continuing 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22. 

23 

24 

25 

objection, Your Honor, to any reference to 

this through previously stated rulings? 

THE COURT: Sustain the objection 

to that slide. Jury won't consider that. 

Q. . (BY MR. SHAPIRO) I want to talk -to 

you about some of the. railroad manuals, Mr. Maynard, 

because as a supervisor you told t.his jury there 

were a lot of safety rules on the railroad. Right? 

A. There were . 
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Paul Maynard - Cross 

MR. BAKER: Your Honor, Mr. Freeman 

will be here and will be able to talk atout 

this document that this · gentleman did not 

prepare. 

Q. 

A. 

recall it. 

Q. 

·MR. SHAPIRO: Okay . 

(BY MR. SHAPIRO) You never saw it? 

Not until this trial came. I don't 

Okay. But you contacted him in 

10 1985, and one of the reasons you contacted him that 

11 year was you were concerned about health hazards at 

12 the site. R{ght? 

13 

14 

;l!;i 

16 

17 

18 

A. 

Q. 

Q. 

Correct. 

And you learned about a worker - ­

MR. BAKER: Objection, Your Honor. 

(BY MR. SHAPIRO) -- that claimed 

that Geiger co~nters ~ent of£ scale 

A. Never heard that. 

19 THE COURT: Sustain the objection. 

20 The jury will disregard that slide. 

21 Q. (BY MR. SHAPIRO) Didn't you read 

22 the newspapers, Mr. Maynard? 

23 A. I don't recall reading that in the 

24 

25 

newspaper . 

Q. (BY MR. SHAPIRO) What 
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Paul Maynard - Cross 

1 THE COURT: The Court has already 

2 ruled on that, Mr. Sliapiro, move on. · 

3 Q. (BY MR. SHAPIRO.) . Okay. And who was 

4 in charge of the overall health and safety in 1985 

5 and made choices, that's spelled wrong, on workers' 

6 safety, sir? 

7 A. In charge of our workers? 

8 Q. Yes. In charge of CSX's workers? 

9 A. CSX Transportation. 

10 Q. I mean, was Mr. Badders the 

11 industrial hygienist in charge? 

12 A. He was part of it. 

13 Q. -Now, I want to talk about that time 

14 frame from 1985 until 1991. You were gone but I 

15 

16 

think you know what we have been talking about in 

that time frame. 

17 Now, were there any changes that 

18 Mr. Badders instituted after 1985 when you talked to 

19 him that you can tell me about in the way the work 

20 was done at the Witherspoon yard? 

21 A. Well, yes, there was a change 

22 after 

23 Q. What was the change? 

24. A. Started in 1985 . . In 1985 we 

25 started going to, as I testified previously, we went 
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Paul Maynard - Cross 

• 1 cabs? 

2 A. Well, I guess to a certain degree 

3 it can. 

Q. Did you ever smell diesel fumes 

5 inside the crew cabs? 

6 A. Any time that I was ever around a 

7 diesel engine, a diesel locomotive, inside the cab 

8 or just in the general area, you are going to smell 

9 diesel fuel, same as you do when you get in your 

10 pickup truck. 

11 Q. Have you ever seen black looking 

12 smoke coming out of diesel stacks on engines before? 

• 13 A. Well, to the degree of -- if you 

14 say it's excessive, if you have excessive black 

15 smoke, you probably have a malfunction, you have 

16 something wrong with your engine . . It may be a 

17 busted ring, piston ring, or you could have 

18 mechanical malfunction on it. 

19 Q. You have seen that happen on the 

20 railroad before, haven't you? 

21 A. I have seen it happen, yes. 

22 Q. And until it's fixed, it blows the 

23 black smoke. Right? 

24 A. Until it's fixed -- a lot of times • 25 we shut it down. 
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Paul Maynard - Cross 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

Q. Have you ever . seen any smoke like 

l.0 

11 

12 

13 

that? 

A. If that engine is smoking like 

that, it's not going to make it another mile. 

MR. BAKER: Put it back up there, 

I'd like to see it some more. 

Q. . (BY MR. SHAPIRO) Is that an engine 

for the L & N Railroad? 

A. It is. 

Q. I don't know where this picture was 

taken, but can we agree -~ 

A. Well, I can, but I can tell you 

with 30 years of rail. experience that that is an 

14 engine with a . serious mechanical malfunction. 

15 Q. Okay. Now, this is a newer engine, 

16 this 2742 and 

17 MR. SHAPIRO: Tommy, . can you take 

18 the lights down one more time for me, 

19 please? 

20 Q. (BY MR. SHAPIRO) Now, do you see 

21 any stacks sticking up real high from that type of 

22 engine, Mr. Maynard?· 

2 3 . A. No, because you got the long 

24 

25 

section or whatever you want to call it that's built 

~igher. That's part of the qesig~ . of the engine, 
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Paul Maynard - Cross 

• 1 
, 

it's -- it exceeds the level · of the cab locomotive, 

2 cab of the locomotive. 

3 Q. So you don'~ know anything about 

4 what was learned by .claims repres~ntatives with the 

5 railroad back irr the •sos, do you? 

6 A. Nothing. 
. . 

7 Q. Did you ever know while you were a 

.· 8 trainmaster about a regulation relating to fumes not 

9 getting inside . crew cabs? 

10 A. That would have been more for our 

11 mechanical, mechanical guys. : No, all I knew is that 

12 they were governeq by the FRA and had to meet the 

• 1~ FRA standards and they regularly checked them. 

14 Q. Thank you, Mr. Maynard. Those are 

15 all my questions. 

·16 MR. BAKER: I have no questions. 

17 THE COURT: Lunchtime. Let's .try 

18 to get back by 1!1s, and we'll go to lunch. 

19 (Off tlle record at 12:04 p.m.) 

20 (On the record at 1:16 ... p.m.) 

2i MR . . BAKER: I wo4ld rather be shot 

22 in the foot by making this . motion, but I 

23 must make -- move for mistrial because 

24 plaintiff •s counsel, against what he told us • 25 and what he represented ·to the Court about 
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the cesium, threw up on the screen 

unbeknownst to me sornethi.ag that said Oak ·· 

Ridge with Mr.. Maynard, of all people 

Mr. Maynard, "Oak Ridge Y-12 spur cleanup, 

tracks closed down, cesium radiation 

contamination, tracks, ballast rock cleaned, 

remediated by DOE." 

That was supposed to be out. They 

introduced no evidence whatsoever about 

cesium. Now we have to address the blooming 

thing, · so I must move for mistrial because 

of what they did on that. 

MR. SHAPIRO: Your Honor, there was 

never any motion in limine that said that we 

were never going to df fer something about 

cesium or the Y-12 _tracks. And in fact, 

Mr. Badders through CIH, who they advised me 

they are calling him to t~stify, was 

notified Friday afternoon, answers inquiries 

about cesium being cleaned up from Y-12. 

And they told me they were calling him on 

Friday. It's in his deposition that was 

taken in this case, and I don't understand 

what they are you know, · this was cross 

examination, and they have an industrial 
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hygienist who has confirmed those £acts 

already, · and t can read the portions of his 

deposition to Your Honor 

THE COURT: The Court is under the 

impression we agreed we weren't going to 

talk about that for whatever reason. 

MS . YOUNG: It ,. s on the record . 

MS. THOMPSON: r filed a motion and 

they never c~lled Badders in their case in 

chief. 

THE COURT: In any event, I would 

like to make this comment. The Court is 

struck by the fact that apparently both 

sides in this case are not able to do 

anything that's not already written down, 

and that means ask questions and the 

questions not written down in a notebook 

they can't ask a question and if the 

question is written down they are going to 

ask it no matter what. This is not a good 

way to present a case in my opinion. I 

doubt the jury thinks it is. But I try to 

make allowances because it seems that that's 

the only way either side ~an do anything in 

this . case, so then we reach problems like we 
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just ~ad with this last witness, we ask him 

thing::i that were in the notebook which 

probably shouldn't have been gone into, for 

example, like the picture of the smoking 

locom9tive, if that's what it was, there's 

not even a claim by plaintiff he was ever 

exposed to that sort of thing . 

Anyway, but you all knew that after 

we started the case, that's what I was faced 

with, · and I guess I have to sort of make 

allowances because that's the only way we 

are going to get through this case. 

The Court takes no action on your 

motion at this time. 

Let's go ahead, and who is your 

next witness going to be? 

MS. YOUNG: Mr. Billy . Freeman. 

THE COURT: That's another thing, 

they represent they have never seen these 

things you flashed up on the screen. 

Anyth~ng that's shown has to be shown to the 

other· side before you do it. 

MR. BAKER: I agree. 

THE COURT: That goes both ways. 
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Billy Freeman . - Direct 

A. I was. 

Q. So when you got this phone call 

from Mr. Maynard, what did you _do :? 

1551 

A. I contacted Eddie Nanney because he 

was my supervisor .and I didn't know the answer to 

the question. '. But I also knew that from my minimal 

file review t~at Eddie Nanney who was my supervisor 

had experience there. He was th~re prior to my 

showing up, so I knew he was someone that might know 

more about it than I would. 

Q. He had been pretty active at the 

Witherspoon Scrapyard? 

A. He had been involved with it, yes. 

Q. Okay.. And what did you and 

Mr. Nanney decide to advise the railroad regarding 

their concern about .whether it was safe for railroad 

17 switch crews to go inside Witherspoon scrapyard? 

18 J A. Eddie told me to tell them that as 

19 long as they stayed out of the vicinity of the 

20 contaminated barrels that they would be okay, so 

21 that's what I · related and I documented it. 

22 Q. All right. What I've shown up 

23 here, Defendaht' .s Exhibit 380, what is that? Is 

24 that one of your file memos? 

25 A. It looks like the top may have been 
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Billy Freeman;- Direct 

cut off. I tried to put from BHF that's my 

initials, so that I could track what I did. 

Q. Let me show you this. 

1552 

A. At the bottom it says BF. That's 

me. And then colon, and then the :next two letters 

are the secretary that typed that. 

Q. so i·s this a memo that you put in 

your file documenting the contact from Mr. Maynard? 

A. Yes, and my conversations. 

MS. YOUNG: Your Honor, move to 

admit Exhibit. 380. 

THE COURT: Hasn't that been done? 

It's already been done. 

MS. YOUNG: Okay. Thank you. 

Q. (BY MS. YOUNG) Back to this subject 

16 for just a moment, Mr. Freeman. 

17 If you or your supervisor, 

18 Mr. Nanney, had believed that the railroad switch 

19 crews in response to. this inquiry, if you all had 

20 believed that they were not safe, would not be safe 

21 going in Witherspoon, what could you have done under 

22 your authority? 

23 A. I would have asked them not to go 

24 in . 

25 Q. All right. You could have told 
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i 
Billy Freeman ; ~ Direct 

I 

1 them not to go in the Witherspoon Scrapyard, or ask 
I 

.2 or advise the~ not to go in, · you could have done 
. I 

3 that? 

4 A . · I could definitely have asked them, 
I .. 

5 yes. I .ask p$ople · to do things all the time. 

6 Q. Sure. But that's not what you did 

· 7 because ·you f$lt it was safe? 

8 A. Yes, I mean this was an active site 

9 and there wer~ workers there that we were not asking 

+o to leave as w~ll. 

J:.l Q. There were workers of Witherspoon 
I 

12 himself, had some workers there? 

13 A . . Yes,. Witherspoon. . It was an active 

i~ scrap metal b~siness. 

15 Q. Is Ms. Nanney still with . the 

:+6 Tennessee Dep9-rtinent of Radiological Health? 

A. He retired this summer and is hired 

J,.B · back on as a "part-time employee, yes. 

i9 Q. Prior to retiring, what was his 

20 position with i the state? 

A. He was the director. 

22 Q. He was the director for the state 

23 Divisio~ of Radiological He~ith. 

~4 

.25 

A . 

Q. 

I 

I . 
I 

. I 

Yes. 

Okay . Did there come a time maybe 
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Billy Freeman - Direct 

• 1 investigation in September of 1985 with Mr. Badders 

2 when you went ;out and he went and looked at the site 

3 and this is what the site looked like, did you 

4 advise the railroad to get the railroad switch crews 

5 out of the scrapyard? 

6 A. No. 

7 Q. And why not? 

8 A. And as I've said earlier, I didn't 

9 think there was a risk in bringing in empty car rail 

10 cars and railcars filled at the electro .magnet shed 

11 which would be at the bottom of that long and narrow 

12 spur. I didn .' t think it would be a risk to coming 

• 13 in and fillins them up and removing them. 

14 Q. You can keep that up. 

15 That longer square, does that 

16 appear to rep~esent a magnet house? 

17 A. Yes, scrap metal pile, that's the 

is end of the spur where the magnet house is. 

19 Q. All righ.t. Mr. Freeman, can you 

20 explain to this jury why you decide -- why you 

?1 decide even though there's some readings, you a ran 

. 
22 your survey meter, Geiger counter type meter and you 

23 came up with those readings that were on that 

24 diagram, can you tell the jury are there three • 25 tenets that you use, three principles that you use 
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Billy Freeman · - Direct 
' . ~ • ,1 to determine whether those readings .means it's 

2 unsafe for somebody to be out there? 

3 A. Yes, . I think I understand the 

4 question. 

5 Q. Time, distance and shielding? 

6 A. Okay. 

7 Q. Explain that to the jury. 

B A. When you are working with radiation 

J or radioactive materials or x-ray, any type of 

10 radiation, there's three principles that we would 

11 apply and they are called time, distance and shield . 

12 You want to reduce the time you are 

• 13 near the radiation source, you want to put shielding 

14 in between the radiation source and you want to put 

15 distance · between you and the radiation source. Kind 

16 of common sense proposals, but those are the three 

17 tenets of health physics they are protecting. 

18 So applying those here, I just 

19 didn't view that, considering the dose rates that 

20 you had shown up there and considering the time they 

21 would be in there and the distance that they were 

22 away from the sources , that it would provide a risk. 

23 Q. Okay. Well , let me ask you in a 

24 little bit mor e detail about the time principle . 

• 25 What did _you understand from your 
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Billy Freeman · - Direct 

1 observations of the switch crew doing their job .out 

2 there at the Witherspoon Scrapyard, what did you 

3 observe apout the time that a switch crew may have 

4 been in the scrapyard? 

s A. I didn't time the switch crews when 

6 they were in the scrapyard. I had already decided 

7 that their time there· was not significant as far as 

8 radiation risk, so I didn't -- I didn't do any time 

9 studies. 

10 

11 

12 

13 

Q. 

Q. 

Less than an hour? 

MR. SHAPIRO: Objection, leading. 

(BY MS. YOUNG) Withdrawn. 

can you approximate the amount of 

14 time? 

15 A. They weren't there very long. They 

16 rolled in, the car was filled up and right out. 

17 Somewhere between 30 minutes and two hours. I don't 

18 · really know. : rt seemed like a brief period of time. 

19 I'm not really prepared to talk about the minutes on 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

it. 

Q. Let me talk to you about distance 

there. 

We saw a diagram a minute ago and 

it had the railroad track out in the middle and some 

barrels on each side. The distance from those 
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Billy Freeman , - · nirect 

• 1 barrels to the tracks, that was sufficient distance 

2 to lead you to believe that the distance would not 

3 :P.ut the railroad crew at risk? 

4 MR. SHAPIRO: Obj.ection, leading, 

5 Your Honor. 

6 Q. ' (BY MS. YOUNG) Tell me about 

7 distance and the barrels and what it meant to your 
; 

B recommendation that the railroad switch crews were 

9 not in danger. 

10 A. Dose rates on the rail line were 

11 far enough, e:p.ough di.stance from the sources of 

12 radiation to create low enough dose rates that they 

• 13 were insignificant in my opinion. 

14 Q. Let's move on to shielding. 

15 We're talking a lot about barrels. 

16 Do the barrel , -- what might provide shielding as to 

17 the barrels? 

18 A. well, in this case because it's 
~ 

19 uranium and there's a significant beta -- alpha beta 

20 component, th~y were in metal drums and the metal 

21 drums themselves provide shielding. They provide a 

22 hundred percent shielding for alpha and, no-risk 

23 shielding for beta, and much less shielding for . 

24 gamma. So there was ·- - whatever got out of the • 25 barrels was gamma radiation. 
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Billy.Freeman ·- - Direct 
.. · 

something to compare it to. It varies depending 

what you are around. You know, a · lot of natural 

things have different backgrounds, : so background in 

your office and your office will be different. 

Q. ~11 right. 

A. So there I would take backgrounds 

7 say out on the Candara spur or something nearby .so 

8 that I would have something that is comparable. 

9 Q. Is this what's been marked as · 

·10 Defendant's Exhibit 310, is this another one of your 

11 

12 

l3 

l,6 

17 

memos to the file? 

A. Yes . 

Q. Move to admit Defendant's Exhibit 

310. 

(Exhibit 310 -received}. 

MR. SHA~IRO: . :rfo objection. 

Q. (BY MS. YOUNG) Let me move quickly 

18. and I want to talk to you about enforcement, what 

19 

:? 0 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

duties you have regarding enforcement. 

Could your authority as in your 

position with Tennessee Department of Radiological · 

Health, could you and your colleagues actually cite 

a person, a company or an entity, cite them with a 

violation of a radiation regulation? 

A. That. is what I do . 
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Billy Freeman Direct 

• 1 Q. Okay. Could you does your 

~ authority, does it or does it not include the 

3 authority to tell a person, a combany, or an entity 

4 to use film badges or to use respirators or use 

5 protective clothing? 

6 A. As needed we do that, yes. 

7 Q. And does it matter to you who owns 

8 the property where something may be going on as to 

-· 
9 whether you can tell somebody to wear a respirator 

10 or recommend they have a film badge or wear 

11 protective cl~thing? 

12 A . I've· never encountered a situation 

• 13 where title or ownership was ~elevant to my 

14 regulatory authority. No, I don't pursue who owns 

15 the property or who owns the business; I pursue the 

16 management over the facility. 

17 Q. Let me ask you this. 

18 Iri your time with Tennessee 

19 Radiological Health and your involvement with the 

20 Witherspoon Scrapyard, did you ever cite the 

21 railroad, tell the railroad that it was in violation 

22 of any radiological shipping regulation? 

23 MR. SHAPIRO: Objection, Your 

24 Honor . • 25 THE ·coURT: Go . ahead. 
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Billy Freeman - Direct 

A. No. 

Q. (BY MS. YOUNG) Did you with your 

1582 

3 authority, did you ever cite the railroad for any 

4 violation of a radiation regulation that might not 

5 pertain to shipping but j~st another radiation 

6 regulation? 

7 MR. SHAPIRO: Same objection. 

8 THE COURT: Go ahead. 

9 A. I haven't cited the railroad with 

10 regard to this facility at all. 

11 Q. Okay. Have you ever advised the 

12 

13 

railroad or recommended or ordered the railroad to 

put film badges. or respirators or protective 

14 clothing on its switch crews that ·go into 

15 Witherspoon Scrapyard? 

16 A. No. 

17 Q. From your review of the former file 

18 of the Tennessee Department of Radiological Health 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

prior to your coming on board, did any of your 

colleagues or predecessor colleagties ever cite the 

railroad for any radiation regulation or tell the 

railroad that they had to put certain equipment on 

their switch crews? 
r . 

A. No . 

Q. Is that something, Mr. Freeman, is 
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Billy Freeman - Direct 

1 that or is that not something you ·would have done if 

2 you felt those railroad switch crews were in danger, 

3 you would have told them to either get off the 

4 property or wear protective equipment, would you 

5 have done that? 

6 

7 

A. 

Q. 

Yes. 

All right. Let me move on to a 

B concept that I want to touch on just briefly, 

9 because the jury has heard a little bit about this. 

10 Does the dose-response phenomenon 

11 apply to radiation exposure? 

12 

13 

A . 

question. 

I'm not sure I understand the 

14 Q. In radiation exposure, the more 

15 exposure you get the· greater the risk of harm? 

16 

17 

A. 

Q. 

That's correct. 

And the converse or reverse is true 

18 also, that the lower the exposure the lower the risk 

19 of harm? 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A. That's correct, down to a certain 

point. 

Q. Okay. Let me ask you if -- I'm 

going to -- let me show you what's been marked as 

Defendant's Demonstrative Exhibit .. No. 117, and I'm 

going to hand you a copy so it's easier for you to 
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Larry Liukonen - Direct 

asbestos released brake shoes? 

A . Yes, I have . 

Q. Use - - do you know what this is? 

A . That's a railroad brake shoe. 

Q. Is that a new one or an old one? 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 A. Tha.t' s a used one. Looks like it 

7 came off of a rail car. 

8 Q. Have you tested f.or asbestos 

9 release from this kind of equipment.? 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. Can you tell 

testing? 

A. Sure. I've 

different occasions. When I 

the jury about that 

done it on a couple 

first. started working 

15 for the railroad, I was wondering what would happen 

16 if you were in a -- if any asbestos would be 

1 7 rele.ased during braking from a shoe like this I SO we 

18 found the heaviest train we could, which was a 

19 train, it was a 40-car train of rock, we found it 

20 coming down the longest grade we could -- no 

21 asbestos. 

22 Which was coming out of the Rocky 

23 Mountains. And so we -- so we tested in the caboose 

24 during the entire application of brakes coming out 

25 of the Rocky Mountains with all the composition 
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Larry Liukonen - Direct ,. 1 all asbestos containing brake shoe train. 

2 Q·. We've talked about asbestos being 

3 in railroad brake shoes. 

4 Has asbestos always been in 

5 railroad brake shoes? 

6 A. No, it has not. 

7 Q. When was it in railroad brake 

8 shoes? 

9 A. It was -- it was first allowed in 

10 1964. The American Association of Railroads has 

11 very. strict rules so that cars ano locomotives and 

12 trains can be interchanged from one to another, so 

1 • 13 you can't use something unless you get the approval 

14 of the overall organi.zation. 

15 These brakes they want to make 

16 sure they .are safe and things, too. 

17 These brake shoes were first 

18 approved in 1964. They were never universally used, 

19 probably never got to be in over maybe a third of 

· 20 the fleet and by 1978, they were being phased out 

21 and by the early '80s, they were entirely gone~ 

22 Q. Does the railroad use asbestos 

23 brake shoes anymore? 

24 A . No. • 25 Q. Do automobiles use asbestos brake 
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shoes? · 

A. They can. There ' s nothing wrong· 

1755 

3 with automobile brake shoes. There's certain 

4 manufacturers that were putting asbestos-containing 

s brake shoes on cars very recently. 

6 Q. So is it possible to go to an auto 

7 parts store today a~d buy a brake shoe for your car 

8 or truck that has asbestos in it? 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

A. It's· legal. How available they 

are, I don't know. , I haven't tried. 

Q. Okay. When you did your testing of 

this rock train, what kind of results did you come 

up with? 

A. We measured some very low levels of 

15 fibers, which in those days we didn't have the 

16 technology to determine whether or not the fibers 

17 were actually asbestos. We weren't concerned even 

18 with the levels they were even if they were all 

19 asbestos, which most likely they were not. 

20 

21 

22. 

23 

24 

25 

Q. 

what we have. 

A. 

Up on the screen we have -- tell us 

You're looking at the wheel . It 

looks like it's· a car, and that's the brake shoe 

right there. 

Q. Is that what this thing is over 
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4 

there? 

5 air. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Direct 

That's correct. 

And how does it stop the train? 

The brakes operate on compressed 

1756 

6 The compressed air is used to keep 

7 the brakes off of the wheel . 

8 When the engineer releases some 

9 air, then the brakes apply to the wheel and stop the 

10 train. 

Have you seen that happen? 

Oh, yes . 

11 

12 

13 

Q. 

A . 

Q. And when that happens do · you see 

14 any smoke or anything? 

15 A . Sometimes you do, sometimes you 

16 will . see -- there will be oil or grease or 

17 something . rn fact, there's often grease on rails 

18 on curves to reduce friction, and often there's 

19 grease, so , yes, you will get some smoke sometimes. 

20 Q. If -- let's say that shoe that's up 

21 there, not here, has some asbestos in it. 

22 When the brakes are applied to that 

23 asbestos-contai ning shoe, does it give off asbest'os 

24 fiber? 

25 A. No, it doesn't. 
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Larry Liukonen - Direct 

How do you know that? 1 

2 

Q . 

A. That's been studied by a number of 

3 different people, and what happens is you get very 

4 high temperatures right at the surf ace of the brake 

5 shoe, ~nd any ~sbestos that's -- that's present is 

6 changed into a different form, a different material 

7 because of the high temperature. · The high 

8 temperature breaks it down so it's given off as 

9 something else. 

10 Q. I •ve asked you to look at 

11 Mr. Payne's work history at the railroad. 

12 

13 

A. 

Q. 

Yes . 

And I've asked you to look 

14 particularly at his asbestos and diesel claims. 

15 Have you done that? 

16 A. I have. 

Q. And you know that Mr. Payne was a 

18 trainman/switchman at the railroad. 

19 A. That's correct. 

20 Q. over the -- over your career in 

21 working in the railroad industry, have you found out 

22 what switchmen do at the railroad? 

A. 

Q . 

Yes. 

And in your -- as a result of your 

23 

24 

25 history with the railroad, do swi::chmen. have much of 
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• 1 an opportunity to come in contact ' with asbestos? 

2 A. No, they don't. 

3 Q. Why not? 

4 A. The railroad is is heavily 

5 unionized and you don't do what _:_ a job that's done 

6 by another craft. So trainmen,, switchmen switch 

7 trains, make up trains, move trains; they don't do 

8 work on locomotives, they don't do work on cars, 

9 they don't change brake shoes. 

10 A brake shoe would be changed on 

11 cars, changed by a carman. A brake shoe on a 

12 locomotive would be changed by a machinist. Only in 

• 13 an emergency situation if you're oµt in the middle 

14 of nowhere and something happens they could do 

15 something with the brake shoe. Under normal 

16· circumstances they would never do anything like 

17" that. 

18 Q. You said from your experience with 

19 the railroad that you generally know what switchmen 

40 do. 
.. 

21 Specifically to Mr. Payne, what 

22 have you reviewed in this case that can tell you 

23 about what he did and what his allegations are? 

24 A . Oh, I reviewed his deposition, both · • • 25 depositions. I reviewed expert reports. I'm 
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1 • l familiar with the a:r;eas where he worked and my 

2 general experience in railroading. 

3 Q. What is your understanding of what 

4 Mr. Payne claimed were his sources of exposure to 

5 asbestos? 

6 A. My understanding is for asbestos 

7 it 1 s brake shoes, it's being in h::rildings, where 

8 there might be some asbestos-containing materials in 

9 the buildings, being in locomotives and cabooses 

10 where there might be some asbestos-containing 

11 materials. 

12 Q . All right. Let's talk about each 

• 13 of those briefly. You told us a little bit about 

14 your experience with brake shoes. 

15 What does Mr . . Payne claim was the 

16 source of his asbestos exposure f:r;om those brake 

17 shoes? Did he ever change them? Did he ever handle 

18 them? 

19 A. He would not have ever changed them 

20 or handled them. Even if he had, that's also been 

21 studied by me and by others and there's no exposure 

22 from changing a brake shoe either. It's a very 

23 simple operation as opposed to doing it on your car 

24 or your truck . • 25 Q. would Mr . Payne have ever had any 

Truesdel & Rusk 
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• 1 asbestos exposure from brake shoes that would have 

2 been potentially harmful to h i m? 

3 A. No. 

4 Q. You told us about PEL's. 

5 A. Yes. 

6 Q. Permissible exposure limits. Would 

7 he have ever had any exposures to asbestos from 

8 brake shoes that would have been n.bove the PEL's? 

9 A. Not even close. 

10 Q. And if he · didn't have any exposure 

11 above the PEL's, what does that tell you? 

12 A . That tells me that that's a 

• reasonably safe place to work. 

14 Q. You discussed bei ng in buildings 

15· and being around some -- you mentioned being around 

16 some pipes . 

17 A. Yes. 

18 Q. What is your understanding of his 

19 claim about being around some pipes in buildings? 

20 A. we.11, again, as a trainman he would 

21 not have had the opportunity or even been allowed to 

22 work on any pipes, so it ' s simply a matter of being 

23 in a bui lding where there are pipes, and there 

24 simply isn't any exposure from do,ing that . • 25 I ' ve studied that, studi ed aboard 

J 
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1 Navy ships, studied it -- collected hundreds of 

2 samples in CSX buildings where there was 

3 asbestos-containing material. Didn't measure any 

4 airborne fibers whatsoever. Environmental 

5 ~rotection Agency studied it extensively and said 

6 the same thing, there's no more. asbestos in the air 

7 in buildings that have asbestos-containing materials 

8 

9 

10, 

11 

12 

13 

1.4 

15 

16 

17 

than in buildings that don't have 

asbestos-containing materials. So there's no 

exposure simply from being around it. 

Q. Would he have had any exposures 

that exceeded PEL's just by being in the vicinity of 

those pipes? 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

. Q. 

No, not even close. 

Cabooses, do you remember cabooses? 

I do. 

What· is your understanding of what 

18 Mr. Payne claims about exposure from cabooses? 

19 A. He claims and he's correct that 

20 there was often a heat shield behind the stove on a 

21 caboose to keep the caboose from catching on fire. 

22 Typically it was a very hard, non-friabl~ material 

23 

24 

25 

containing cement, and then further it was covered 

by a piece of sheet metal. 

Again, he would have had no work --
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1 no opportunity to do any work around that material 

2 or with that material simply being in the caboose. 

3 Q. Did that heat shield have a 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

percentage of asbestos fi~er in it? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Why was it even there? 

A. To keep the caboose from burning 

up. 

Q. Would being around that heat shield 

10 . when he rode in the. cabooses, would that have given 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

him any asbestos exposure? 

A. None whatsoever. 

Q. Mr. Liukonen, what is that? 

A. That's a cab heater in a 

locomotive. 

That particular heater is on the 

engineer's side. 

Q. Are you familiar with those cab 

heaters? 

A. I am. 

Q. Have you seen one or two of them 

before? 

A . Many. 

Q. There's been some discussion about 

the cab heater ,: and T think there's an allegation 
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1 that maybe that cab heater is the source of asbestos 

2 exposure to Mr. Payne. 

3 Have- you investigated that 

4 particular allegation before? 

5 

6 

A. 

Q. 

7 about that. 

Yes, I have. 

Tell the jury what you've done 

8 A. Well, we have done bulk sampling on 

9 many locomotives to determine where the asbestos is 

10 and where it isn't. We do not find it in the 

11 locomotive cab. When it was ·an locomotives, it was 

12 outside the locomotive cab. And we have also taken 

13 many air samples in locomotives that still have the 

14 asbestos-containing material on them both .in the cab 

15 and in the air compressor compa~tment where most of 

16 the asbestos-containing materials is and we 

17 collected those samples when the trains are in 

18 operation and, again, we found no airborne asbestos 

19 during operation. 

"2 0 Q. Mr. Liukonen, there's been a claim 

21 that there's a _pipe down at the bottom of that 

22 heater. 

23 

24 

25 floor? 

A. 

Q . 

Yes. 

And the p.ipe comes up through the 
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A. Yes. 

Q. And that there has been some 

1764 

3 insulation on that pipe that goes from the floor to 

4 the bottom of the heater? 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

:u 

+.2 

13 

14 

A . 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Yes. 

Do you understand that? 

I do. 

Have you heard that before? 

I have. 

Have you ever looked to see if you 

could ever see that pipe on a locomotive and that 

pipe being insulated; have you ever looked for that? 

A . 

Q. 

Many times. 

How long have you looked for that? 

15 A. Probably since 1 7 9. I have been 

16 looking extensively for that for probably 20 years. 

17 

18 

Q. 

A. 

Have you ever seen it? 

No. Well, I've seen one pipe 

19 possibly where that .. could have occurred. 

Q. 

A. 

One locomotive? 

One locomotive . You can see that 

22 most heaters sit right on the floor. There is no 

23 pipe there is no pipe underneath the heater. 

24 

25 

Q . There's also been some discussion 

about a fan inside the heater . blowing asbestos 
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around in the locomotive cab. Does that make any 

sense to you? 

A. 

Q. 

No, it does not . 

Why is that? 

s A. Because the asbestos-containing 

1765 

6 material is primarily underneath the floor. Where 

7 the pipe comes -- this is a hot water heater, and 

8 where the warm water comes from is the engine 

9 compartment, so it comes from the engine 

10 compartment, runs underneath the ~ocomotive where 

11 

12 

13 

it's outside and needs to be insulated, comes up 

inside . There's a double floor in the locomotive. 

It comes up inside that double floor and again it's 

14 insulated, and then it comes into the heater where 

15 there's no reason for it to be insulated. 

16 Q. Would the ope::r;:-ation of that heater 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

create any asbestos exposure in people riding in 

locomotives? 

A. No. 

Q. Would just being around that have 

given Mr. Payne any asbestos exposure? 

A. No. 

Q. I think I jumped the gun. I'm 

going to ask you about that in just a minute. 

But to wrap up on asbestos, 

.._~---...------~~--~~~~--------~=~ ... -.--------------------
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1 Mr. Liukonen, have you to l d us about all of the 

2 exposures to asbestos that Mr . Pa)ne claims he had· .. 

3 or --

I think we left one out. 

What did we leave out? 

4 

5 

6 

A. 

Q. 

A. I think we left out the potential 

7 of insulated pipes in gondola cars on trains he was 

8 working on. 

9 Q. How do you assess that? 

10 A. I'm of the same opinion of that as 

11 any other material that he would have been around. 

12 He wouldn't have been doing any 

13 work with it, so that there would be no exposure, 

14 simply being around something doesn't create 

15 eXposure. 

16 Q. If there's a pipe that has some 

17 insulation on it, just by looking at it, can you 

18 tell if it's asbestos· or not? 

No, you cannot. 19 

20 

A. 

Q. If there's a pipe sitting right 

21 here where my glasses are that has got asbestos 

22 wrapped on it, is that a danger to everybody in the 

23 room just sitting here? 

24 

25 . 

A . 

Q. 

Not at all. 

Now, thinking about all the 
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allegations of asbestos exposure that Mr. Payne and 

his counsel have made, thinking. about the testing 

that you've done and thinking about what you have 

just testified to, Mr.. Liukonen, do you have a 

5 scientific opinion about whether any of that gave 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

Mr. Payne a significant asbestos exposure at the 

railroad? 

A. I do . . 

Q. What is your opinion, sir? 

A. My opinion is none of that gave him 

any significant exposure to asbestos. I doubt if he 

had any days where he ever had a measurable exposure 

to asbestos. 

Q. Is that opinion ·something that you 

hold to a reasonable degree of scientific certainty 

16 and something that is· based on your years of testing 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

for asbestos? 

A. Yes, it is. 

Q. Let's go to issue No. 2, 

Mr. Liukonen, and then we'll be done. 

Let's talk about diesel exhaust . 

Are you familiar with diesel exhaust? 

A. very much so. 

Q. You understand Mr. Payne claims 

that he had some exposure to diesel exhaust in the 
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1 

2 

railroad industry. 

A. Yes, I do. 

3 Q. Have you ever looked at the issue 

4 of diesel exhaust exposures to people like 

5 Mr. Payne? 

Very extensively. 

What have you done? 

6 

7 

8 

9 

A. 

Q. 

A. Well·, I've done a number of things. 

10 

When I first started in the industry, when I worked 

for Burlington Northern, we had the two longest 

11 railroad tunnels in the country, one of which was 

12 

13 

seven miles long and ~he other one was eight miles 

long. So I started studying the issue of diesel 

14 exhaust ~xposure to train crews early on. 

15 And then whep. we were working for 

16 CSX, we did a lot of work in shops because in many 

17 locations the diesel locomotives were running inside 

18 of the shops so we had opportunity for exposure 

19 there. 

20 And then in the early '90s, Mark 

21 Badders said, "Larry, I really would really like you 

22 to take a look at train crew diesel exhaust 

23 exposures and start doing some really good studies 

24 on that." so we started doing very extensive work 

25 on train crew exposures to diesel exhaust. 
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l e 1 was 
t~· 

Q. that for CSX'.' 

2 A. Yes, it was. I also did it for 

3 other railroads, but a lot of it has been for CSX. 

4 Q. For how many years have you been 

S doing diesel exhaust studies for CSX? 

6 A. Oh, · I would say -- well, we started 

7 in '87, so it's been at least 20 years. 

8 Q. Do you know how many different 

9 tests of the air on diesel locomotives you have done 

10 for CSX? 

11 A. Well, I've counted it up many years 

12 ago and we were well over a thousand samples then . 

• 13 Q. Now, there's been some discussion 

14 in this case about smelling diesel fumes or diesel 

15 exhaust. Have you ever smelled it? 

16 A. Absolutely. 

17 Q. And in any of the testing that 

18 you've done well, number one, have the trains 

19 been operating? 

20 A. Yes, · we test on operating trains. 

21 Q. And have you ever smelled the 

22 diesel exhaust while you were doing the testing? 

23 A. Many times. 

24 Q . And despite smelling it, what do 

• 25 the results tell you? 
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1 A. The results tell us · that train crew 

2 exposures to diesel exhaust are well within accepted 

3 levels. 

4 

5 

Q. 

A. 

Even if you can smell it? 

Even if you can smell it. 

6 We've specifically set up 

7 situations where we would have a · :bocomotive idling 

8 and then test downwind in another locomotive. We've 

9 done it in twin.els . . We've even stalled or stopped 

10 locomotives in tunnels to simulate situations like 

11 that to try and find out what would happen if we had 

12 an emergency situation. 

13 Q. We have an article up on the 

14 screen. 

15 Can you tell us what _that is, 

16 Mr. Liukonen? 

17 A. Yes, that's an article that a 

18 couple of us published on train crew exposure t .o 

19 diesel exhaust. Historically there's lot of 

20 different things we've looked at. In the recent 

21 past, there's a particular thing that we · looked for 

22- in the diesel exhaust which is paJ.·t of the 

23 particulate called "elemental carbon," and we 

24 published some of our results on that to the 

25 scientific community to show what train crew 
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1 exposures to diesel exhaust are. 

2 Q. Elemental carbon? 

3 A. Yes. 

4 Q. Wh~t is that? 

5 A. It's an indicator of diesel 

6 exhaust. It's something that's given off by 

7 combustion of diesel fuel and has very few 

8 interferences. It's not given off by cigarette 

9 smoke, it's not given off by gasoline engines, we 

10 don't find much of it in the natural environment, so 

11 it's a very good indicator of diesel exhaust 

· 12 exposure . 

13 Q. Can you tell ~he jury what this 

14 article is about and what you did and what your 

15 results were? 

16 A. sure. We -- a lot of it is based 

17 on the work I did for CSX and a lot of it is based 

18 on work I did for a couple of other railroads. And 

19 our focus in all of these was to try and find -- to 

20 look for the worst case scenario. 

21 When we first start out doing· 

22 something, we don't -- obviously don't look . for the 

23 cleanest thing. We want to look for where the 
. . 

24 highest exposures are. So that was something Mark 

25 Badders asked us to do when we first started out. 
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1 He said I want you to look for older engines, I want 

2 you to look for tunnel territory, I want you to look 

3 for ·mountainous terrain, and I want you to do a lot 

4 of sampling in the trailing engine, in the second 

5 unit in case anybody is ever riding on the second 

6 unit. 

7 So that's what we would do. We 

8 would go somewhere, tell the trainmaster, whoever is 

9 in charge, we want to do some diesel tests, sampling 

10 what kind of trains you have coming out. And then 

11 we would pick the one that would have the oldest 

12 units on and we would look for heavy trains. And 

13 again, we were looking in the territory where we 

14 find the highest exposure, that is tunnels and 

15 mountains. 

16 So then w~ woulq . -- now I've 

17 forgotten what the original question was, I'm sorry. 

18 Q. Just tell us about the article . I 

19 think you have pretty well done that. 

20 A. Right. So then when we finished, 

21 we took the elemental carbon, which is pretty well 

22 accepted that that is the best indicator of diesel 

23 

24 

25 

exhaust. We took all of our elemental carbon 

results, put them together into a published paper, 

which is - - this is the final result. 
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1 Q. And generally, can you describe 

2 what your results were? 

3 A. . Yes. We find that typically a 

4 train crew member like an engineer or something like 

5 that, their typical exposure to elemental carbon· is 

6 two and a half micrograms per cubic meter. 

7 If we take a trailing unit, the 

8 average exposure is about 10 micrograms per cubic 

9 meter. 

10 Again, we would do the worst case 

11 

12 

13 

14 

scenario with open windows. I remember doing this 

testing in the wintertime with . open windows because, 

again, we are . looking for highest exposure. 

Q. Sorry. 

15 we 1 ve heard about the Federal 

16 Railroad Administration . . Do you know who they are? 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

position of 

A. 

the 

Yes. 

Have they studied the diesel issue? 

Yes, they have. 

And what is your judgment about the 

FRA.? 

They started off, as I did early 

23 on, looking at things like this long railroad 

24 

25 . 

tunnel, and they determined that there was not 

excessive exposure to train crews, even in this 
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eight-mile long tunnel. 1 

2 They have continued to study. Most 

3 of -their studies -- they are an enforcement agency, 

4 so most of their studies have been a result of 

5 employee complaints and things like that, but they 

6 have continued to study and continue to find that 

7 they don't find excessive levels of exposure. 

8 

9 

Q. 

A. 

Even if you can ~mell it? 

Even if you can smell it. 

10 Q. Okay. We are about to wrap up 

11 here, but let me ask yo4 to talk about standards 

12 again for a second. And we talked about the 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

standard for asbestos in the air being the PEL, 

permissible exposure limit. Right? 

A. 

Q. 

Yes. 

That·· s something that industrial 

hygienists use to ·assess whether a workplace is safe 

or not. Right? 
' ·. 

A. _Right. 

Q. Now, . is there a permissible 

21 exposure limit for diesel exhaust? 

22 A. There is not. Diesel exhaust is a 

23 complex mixture. What OSHA would do, for example, 

24. is they would look for some of the gases, nitrous 

25 dioxide, carbon monoxide, although you don't find 
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1 much, but those are the sorts of things that they 

2 would do. But there is not a _specific standard for 

3 diesel exhaust itself. 

4 Q . Well, how do you know if the 

5 measurements that you get indicate that it's safe or 

6 dangerous? 

7 A. A couple of ways. 

8 it•s been pretty well accepted in 

9 the past several years that elemental carbon is our 

10 best indicator of diesel exhaust exposure. 

11 There's another organization called 

12 the American Conference of Governmental Industrial 

13 Hygienists, and they published something called the 

14 threshold limit value, or TLV. It.'s similar to what 

15 OSHA does, but it doesn't have the -- it's a 

16 recommendation and doesn't have the force of law 

17 behind it. 

18 And they several years ago, they 

19 published a recommended TLV for diesel exhaust of 20 

20 micrograms per cubic meter as elemental carbon. 

21 They ·have since rescinded that, but that was the 

22 recommendation that was there and so that's what we 

23 used to compare our exposures to. 

24 

25 

And we can see that our exposures 

typically are about one-fourth of what their 
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1 recommended standard is. 

2 We can also look at people, what 

3 people find in other industries or what people find 

4 in normal areas . 

5 We find that .-- the exposure we 

6 find in train crews is less than living in an urban 

7 area like Los Angeles. They have a higher exposure 

8 24 hours a day than our people do eight or 12 hours 

9 a day. 

10 We can look at people in 

11 underground mines where the exposures are about 400 

12 compared to our two and a half . So you can see that 

13 our exposures are much, much less than other 

14 industries. So you c~n do lots of different things 

15 to see that our exposures are pretty much in an 

acceptable range. 

Q. Even if you can smell it? 

A. Even if you can smell it. 

Q. Okay. You said there was a 

proposed standard that did not go into effect? 

That's correct . 

16 

17 

18 

1.9 

20 

21 

22 

A. 

Q. And that help me here. I'm not 

23 sure of the terminology. It was 20 micrograms? 

24 

25 

A . 

elemental carbon. 

Micrograms per cubic meter of 
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Q. So that was the standard that you 

"Q.Sed? 

A . 

Q. 

That's correct. 

Even though it's not in effect, · 

s that's the standard that you used? 

6 A. That's correct, 

7 Q. Now, what do you understand to have 

8 been Mr. Payne's claims about being exposed to 

9 diesel exhaust? 

. 10 A. It would have been, you know, as a 

11 

12 

13 

switchman, a trainman, he ~ould be in the yard, he 

would be around the locomotives, he would be 

occasionally riding on locomotives, sometimes riding 

14 on cars either in front of or behind the 

15 locomotives. 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q. And was he involved in what are 

called "shove moves"? 

He was. A. 

Q. And does that have an impact on 

diesel exhaust exposure? 

A. Sure. It really eliminates it 

because what he's talking about is you have several 

cars and the . locomotive is at one end and he's 

riding the other end doing what we call "protecting 

the crossing," so he's several ca:ts in front of the 
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exhaust. 

Q. Mr . Liukonen, based on all the 

studies you ' ve done, I think you said thousands of 

diesel exhaust in locomotive cabs.and understanding 

what switchmen do and .understanding what Mr. Payne 

says he did , do ·you have an opinion about whether he 

had any significant exposures to diesel exhaust 

while he worked for CSX? 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

I do. 

What is your opinion, s i r? 

My opinion is h.e did not have any 

excessive exposures, had very low levels of 

exposure, similar to working in an urban area, 

14 probably not much different than driving down the 

15 interstate. 

16 Q. Would he have gotten even remotely 

J,.7 close to that 20 whatever it is standard you told 

18 us? 

19 

20 

A. 

Q. 

No, he would not have. 

Did Mr. Payne need a mask or 

21 respirator while he w.as working for the railroad? 

22 A. Not at all. 

23 

24 

25 

Q. Do you know of any railroad in 

America that requires people like .Mr. Payne to wear 

a mask or a respirator while he ' s in a locomotive 
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1 • 1 the jury ~hat you have done , but would you think 

2 that Mr. Payne, a railroad worker, a switchman 

3 working for the railroad, based upon what you have 

4 done and what you know about him, would have had as 

5 much radiation exposure as a nuclear worker? 

6 A. No, . I do not. 

7 Q. Why do you say that? 

8 A. Well, I say that because when we - -

9 when we went through the -- basically a time motion 

- 10 study of where Mr, Payne was when and how long he 

11 was there and what he could have been potentially 

12 exposed to. We gave Mr ·. Payne every benefit of the 

• 13 doubt over those exposures and try as we might to 

14 make those numbers as high as we could, they are 

15 still just not high enough to say that Mr. p·ayne 

16 over his 15-year working career where he was in and 

17 out of Witherspoon and in other locations when he 

18 was with the railroad., you know, could have ever 

19 gotten doses that would have been -- would have been 

20 something that even as a radiation protection 

21 professional would have .been on my radar. 

22 Q. Okay. I want·to -- as I mentioned 

23 earlier, what r · want to do in the riext little while 

24 is talk to you about your dose reconstruction, and I 

J • 25 want you to tell "the jury what you did and why you 
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·l did it and what you came up with, but tell us first 

2 what a dose reconst'ruction is · and whether you do 

. 3 them . 

. 4 A. Okay . 

5 MR. SHAPIRO : · . Yo-p.r Honor, just for 

.. 6 the record, I want to state that plaintiff 

7 objects _to the dose reconstruction testimony 

8 for reasons known. Thank you. 

9 THE COURT: Overrule the objection. 

10 The witness may answer the questions. Go 

11 ahead. 

1:2 A . Okay. Dd I do dose 

13 reconstructions? The answer is yes. 

14 What does it entail? Well, you 

15 basically; · like I said before, _you want to look at . 

16 all the details of what an individual does and I've 

17 · got a pretty good example. 

18 My first couple of weeks at the 

19 nuclear power plant I had to go and do .a time motion 

20 study on a security guard whose dosimeter came up on 

21 a routine batch at 52 rem. Well, a security guard 

22 at 52 rem is all the bells go locked. The Nuclear 

23 Regulatory Commission comes into your site, and he 

24 sat in my lab for about two months while I got all 

25 this ciata together. And it was basically because in 
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a power plant when you go through the doors to go 

into the plant there's a key -- card key system, so 

we knew where he was and when he was and where he 

normally traveled, and we actually knew who had met 

him in the air lock as he was going in and out of 

the plant so we interviewed those people, we 

7 interviewed him obviously, and we tried to figure 

B out how he could have_ possibly gotten 52 rem on his 

9 badge given the fact that the average nuclear worker 

10 in a year only gets 200 millirern. 

11 So because those bells and whist_les 

12 were going off, we did everything we could to figure 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

out where he was, when he was there and how he could 

have gotten the dose. Well, it turns out he had 

lost his badge next to an area that was very 

radioactive and he left it there. Somebody found 

it, they gave it back to him and he put it to normal 

18 processing. 

19 So he got a couple weeks off with 

20 no pay because he didn't tell us the truth of what 

21 was going on. 

22 But in Mr. Payne ·,··s -· case, what we 

23 wanted to do was take a look at all the records for 

24 

25 

Witherspoon and all the_ shipments that came into and 

out of the site, the _amount of time that he was 
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1 • 1 there walking around on the site, having a good 

2 understanding of what . he was doing on the site at 

3 the time, and then understanding what the radiation 

4 environment that he might · -- that it actually 

5 consisted of. 

6 So we know there was soil samples 

7 taken on the site, we know there were some drums 

8 that were lef~ there from the early '60s that were 

9 sent over to Witherspoon and Witherspoon could not 

·10 do anything with them other than keep them on the 

11 site. And the state had come in and they had done 

12 some radiation re~din~s on those drums so we took 

• 13 that into account. We took any kind of potential 

14 airborne exposure he might get from dust on the site 

15 being kicked up as the train was moving on site or 

16 even as he was walking on the roa.d next to the train 

17 and, you know, how long he was there and how long he 

18 actually spent riding in the rail car from either 

19 · the Y-12 site or from the Knox yard. We wanted to 

20 mc;ike sure we knew how long it was,. where he was in 

21 the car, what was in the car, and then we basically 

22 put all those numbers together to come up with a 

23 number for his career of work with respect to 

24 Witherspoon. • Q. -(BY MR. JORDAN) Good . 25 
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1 Now, is this the first dose 

2 reconstruction you have done? 

3 - A. No, it is not, no . 

4 Q. Do you are you involved in dose 

5 reconstruction programs for the Federal Government? 

6 A. I am, yes. 

7 . Q. And do you have a position of · 

8 leadership in such dose reconstruction programs? 

9 A. I do. MJW was one of three 

'' 10 · companies that had been working on dose 

11 reconstruction under the EEOICP program, Energy 

12 Employees Occupational Illness Compensation Program. 

13 

14 

15 

i6 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 . 

25 

Iuid that's EEOICP, they couldn't come up with a 

better acronym than that. 

Anyway , · this was ·a 

MR. SHAPIRO: Your Honor, I object 

to this going on any further. 

THE COURT: Okay. Ask another 

question . 

MR. JORDAN: Yes, sir. 

Q. (BY MR. JORDAN) Just tell us what 

your position of responsibility is. 

A. .I am on the management team for 

this project . 

Q. Okay. And are dose reconstructions 
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part of that project? 1 

2 A. That·1 s what it is, it is dose 

3 reconstruction of DOE complex workers, former 

4 workers. 

5 Q. Okay. Let me ask you about a 

1864 

6 couple of terms and then we'll go right to the meat 

7 of your dose reconstruction. 

8 The jury has heard about direct 

9 versus indirect exposures. 

10 can you explain the difference for 

11 us? 

A. Sure . 12 

13 Direct exposure basically if this 

14 cup were radioactive and it were sitting in front of 

15 me and it was emanating. radiation, because I'm close 

16 to it, it's direct exposure. so I'm being exposed 

17 by whatever radioactive substance . is in this cup. 

18 If there were a radioactive 

19 substance in the air and I was breathing that 

20 radioactive substance and it got inside my body, 

21 then it's an indirect dose because whatever I take 

22 in it either goes into ·my lungs, into my stomach, it 

23 circulates around in ~y blood and it can irradiate 

24 all of your body, may irradiate just a particular 

25 organ like iodine. 
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1 People that have thyroid issues 

2 will have iodine-131 injected into them, into your ..,,.. 

3 blood system so that it gets taken up by your 

4 thyroid, and then they can do a scan · of your thyroid 

5 because it's preferentially taken up, and they can 

6 see if you are having an issue with your thyroid. 

7 And that is an example of indirect exposure, 

· a something inside you that may irradiate one or more 

9 · · of your organs. 

Q. What is a time motion study? 

11 A. Well, as I was s_aying before, time 

12 motion, l~ke the security guaro at the power plant, 

13 

14 

we had to figure out where he was, what he was -- as 

he traveled through the plant, how long he was there 

15 and what he may have been exposed to. 

16 So in the case of Mr. Payne, we 

17 wanted to make sure that we knew where he was, when 

18 he was and how long he was in each of the places as 

19 he did his job for the railroad. 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Is that part of what you did? 

Yes, it is. 

Okay. All right . Two more things. 

I suspect that when you explain 

what you did to the jury, you are going to use the 

term "conservative." 
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Yes, I am. 1 

2 

A. 

Q. And I think from watching the _ne~s 

3 we hear that a lot, but I suspect in your world that 

4 might have different definition. 

5 

6 A. 

What do you mean by "conservative"? 

Well, conservative is probably just 

7 another term for favorable in the vernacular that we 

8 use when we do a dose reconstruct~on for somebody. 

9 And especially in the· program that we work in with 

10 the government, what we try to do is give the 

11 every benefit of the doubt to the claimant in terms 

of what dose we got. 12 

13 And that's the same approach t:hat I 

14 used here with a dose reconstruction for Mr. Payne, 

15 is that in every instance I tried to use the upper 

16 end of the numbers that. I saw from the data that we 

17 had for either soil analysis or for airborne 

18 analysis or whatever it was in terms of the 

19 radiation exposure he could have, we used the upper 

20 end of all those numbers. 

21 Q. Did you follow the ~ame scientific 

22 methodology in assessing Mr. Payne's radiation dose 

23 as you would in this federal program that you're an 

24 advisor to? 

25 A . Yes, I did. 
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1 Q. So you think you told the jury 

2 about all of your calculations in the dose 

3 reconstruction? 

4 A. Yes, I have. 

5 Q. Did I understand you earlier to say 

6 what you do when you do all those., various scenarios 

7 is you add them up to get a total dose? 

8 A. Yes. 

9 Q. Have you done that? 

io A. I have and the ~otal that we c.ame 

11 up with for the .15 years, giving every benefit of 

12 the douJ;>t from dose time motion ~oint of view, it 

13 came out to be about 1426 millirem over 15 years , 

14 or, you know, roughly about, you know, 100 millirem 

15 a year, and this is dose to the lung. 

16 Q. Now, let's circle back, and tell us 

17 again what his maximum allowable exposure would have 

18 been. 

19 A. Well, again, remembering that lung 

20 dose is a little higher tha:r;i a whole body dose, it's 

21 about 13 percent higher, you know, his whole body 

22 dose in this case wou_ld probably have been in the 

23 range of about 92 millirem, if you call it whole 

24 body dose. This is for a year. I'll just put WB 

25 for whole body. 
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1 If you were just a person on the 

2 street and you lived next to a nu~lear power plant 

3 or Y-12 or X-10 or any of the facilities over at Oak 

4 Ridge, they were allowed with a _person living on the 

5 fence, q.nd there's not too. many people who live on 

6 the fence, but this is how they calculate it, a 

7 person, nonexposed member of the public, you could 

8 actually receive about 500 millirem per year back in 

9 that day. 

10 In '94 it's been changed to a 

11 hundred, but back up until '94 it was always soo. 

12 

13 

14 yes. 

Q . 

A. 

And you estimated his to be 92? 

92 from a whole body point of view, 

15 Q. Have you attempted to demonstrate 

16 the various numbers that you calculated and added up 

17 in a bar graph? 

18 

19 

20 

21 

A . 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

I have, yes. 

Is this what you c~eated for us? 

Yes, this is one of them. 

I think it would be fine if you 

22 could take the witnes·s stand and let me ask a few 

23 more questions while we talk abou ~::: this graph. 

24 

25 

A . 

Q. 

Yes, sir. 

Dr. Dooley , tell us what that bar 
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1 
i 

hundred or so l eading professiona::s in all areas of 

2 radiation health sc i ences. It's an organization 

3 chartered by Congress and they are asked to wri te 

4 reports for regulatory agencies and other government 

5 officials in the radiation area and I have been an 

6 elected member of the NCRP for about twelve years. 

7 Q. All right. Can you tell me, 

8 Dr. Kocher, have you published any articles or 

9 studies in the fields of health physics? 

10 A . I have quite a few publications. 

11 One of the conditions of working at Oak Ridge 

12 National Laboratory is that you are supposed to 

13 publish. I have roughly 220 publications of which 

14 around 65 are things like peer-reviewed journals, 

15 National Academy of s ·ciences reports, things like 

16 that. · 

17 Q. Dr. Kocher, in 1990, were you asked 

18 to study potential exposures to public - - to the 

19 public and to railroad workers from radiation 

20 contamination along tracks in the town of Oak Ridge 

21 leading up to Y-12? 

22 A. Yes, I was. 

23 Q. And who asked you to do this study? 

24 A. This request came from a program at 

25 Oak Ridge National Lab called the Environmental 
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' . 

l 
I 

Restoration Program; . They ~ad a big program back in 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

I 

I 
the '80s to kind of survey the whole site, find 

areas of contaminat i on and decide what to do about 
I 

I 

it, and I was asked to assist this particular 
j 

situation. 
I 

Q. Did the railroad ask. you ·to do this 

7 study back in 1990? 

8 A. 
! 

No. This was done -- thi s came 
I 

9 from within ORNL. 

10 Q. And can you tell me what can you 

11 tell me .what you looked at? · What did you study in 

12 1990 in regard to this report? 

13 

14 

I 

A. What happened in 1990, sometime 
' '. 

back in the ' 80s and I honestly don't know when, 

15 someone discovered that thefe was a bit of 

16 contamination along railroa~ ·-- along a railroad 

17 line that ran from the east ; end of Oak Ridge into . . I 

I 

18 the Y-12 plant, and some radiation surveys had been 

19 done, people go out with meters and they count the 

20 radiat'ion levels and this was all written up and I 
, I 

21 was basically given this radiation survey data and 

22 asked to do a general kind 9f assessment, just in 

23 general terms about what do ;.these levels of 

24 

25 

radiation and radioactivity: mean in regard to 

potential exposures to the ~embers of the public, 
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there are houses along the railroad tracks and 

people might walk aiong the railroad tracks to avoid 

automobile traffic, kids' might plr.y- out th.ere, 

trains were still running along those tracks in 

those days, what would a typical potential radiation 

exposure -of a railroad worker have been, so I was. 

asked based on this radiation survey data to just do 

a general assessment of how big these doses that 

these people might get arid how big would they be. 

Q. Okay. And what type of data did 

.you use to do your potential dose assessment? 

. A. Yes, I used the radiation survey 

data that had been ·collected by the Env:fronmental 

Restoration Program .and given to me. This had been 

15 written up with covered memoranda and reviewed 

19 within the laboratory and basically approved. 

17 Q. Okay. Is it tyPical for a health 

18 physicist such as yourself to rely on field data 

19 collected by someone else? 

20 A. Absolutely, if I· had to go out -and 

21 

. 22 

23 

24 

25 

do it myself, we wouldn't 

get anywhere . 

Q. Well, tell us what you concluded 

back in 1990 regarding potential exposures· to the 

public and the railroad workers along the tracks at 
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the east end of Oak Ridge? 1 

2 A. Well, I concluded that it was not a 

3 serious problem and the way I assessed that, I did a 

4 dose assessment that probably overestimated a dose 

5 that people would normally get. I mean, I was just 

6 making a general assumption about how much time 

7 would somebody spend walking along the track or how 

8 long would a railroad worker spend there and because 

9 this was a general kind of assessT.ent, I compared 

10 these dose estimates with regulatory standards that 

11 existed at the time. 

12 Ther.e exists public dose limits, 

13 doses above which the public is not supposed to 

14 receive and these doses were well below any 

15 applicable regulatory criterion so my recommendation 

16 to the officials at Oak Ridge was that this is not a 

17 serious problem, but I also recommended I think more 

18 for public relations than for protection of public 

19 health that because these areas are fairly local, 

20 they ought to just go dig up a few of them, we are 

21 talking about a few cubic yards of contaminated dirt 

22 and haul it away and they took my advice . 

23 

24 

25 

Q. 

A. 

the time. 

Okay. 

But it was not a .serious problem at 

Truesdel & Rusk 

App. 216 



I 

l 

• 

• 

• 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

1952 

David Kocher, Ph.D. - Direct 

Q. 

me. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

past . 

1· 

Dr. Kocher, that was in 1990. 

20 years later you get a call from 

Yes, ma'am. 

Okay. And was it .. out of the blue? 

Out of the blue. Blast from the 

Q. Okay. What did -- did ~ contact 

you to talk more in depth about your. 1990 study and 

10 the potential contamination exposure out there on 

11 ' the tracks in east Oak Ridge? 

12 A . That was the subject of our 

13 conversation, yes . 

14 Q. Did I ask you to . look more closely 

15 at potential exposures to railroad workers, in 

16 particular, to Mr. Payne?· 

17 A. Yes, the idea here was to take this 

18 general kind of assessment with sort of assumptions 

19 that I didn't really know whether they were 

20 realistic or not and tailor that assessment to the 

21 · conditions of exposure that Mr. Payne experienced, 

22 essentially based on his depositions. 

23 

24 

25 

Q. 

A . 

Q. 

Did you do that? 

IndeE;!d I did. 

D~d you issue a report? . 
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A. Indeed I did. 

Q. A;id can you tell me or tell the 

jury what - -· what did you review and what 

1953 

4 assumptions did you make and what .documents did you 

5 review to prepare to issue your report? 

6 A. There's two basic pieces of 

7 information that I used. Number one, I relied again 

8 on the radiation survey data that ·had been taken 

9 back in the 1980's that I used in my generic dose 

10 assessment back in 1990, those· data are still valid 

11 and they reflected the conditions at the time and 

12 

13 

the conditions that were roughly the same as 

Mr. Payne would have experienced. And I combined 

14 that with assumptions about where he worked during 

15 what year, how many t .imes a week did he go out 

16 there, how many runs back and forth to Y-12 froni the 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

east Oak Ridge did he make, and I tailored this dose 

assessment to the particular ·conditions of exposure 

that he stated in his testimony that this is what he 

did and seemed to be, by and large, beyond 

contention. I basically took his word for it. 

Q. You took your 1990 report and 

applied it to Mr. Payne. 

A. Abso'iutely. That's exactly what I 

did. 
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1 

2 

Q. And can you.tell me, did you also 

go out to the tracks ·leading up to Y-12 just -- with 

3 Mr. Maynard? 

4 A. Yes, in early or mid August, I 

5 don't remember the exact date, Mr. Maynard came to 

6 Oak Ridge and · r met Jay Bake;r- and the three of us 

7 just went out and we drove along the railroad tracks 

8 from the .east end of Oak Ridge to Y-12 and around 

9 the Y-12 area, we got out and walked around and just 

10 saw where the tracks went and kind of got the lay of 

11 the land and I explained to tbem what I knew about 

12 

13 

the past history of this location. 

Q. Did Mr. Maynard explain about 

14 switching operations for railroaders? 

15 A. Yes, he explained to me, I'm not a 

16 railroad person, he explained to me what Mr. Payne's 

17 duties would have been at the time. 

18 Q. Okay. Does this appear to be the 

19 track leading up into the Y-12 plant? 

20 A. That's basically how it looks 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

today, yes, that gravel riprap there is where the 

track used to be and you can sort of see a bit of it 

in the lower right-hand corner but, yeah, going off 

into the picture to the center left is going into 

the Y-12 railroad yard. 
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Q. And does this appear what it looked 

like the day you went out there with Mr. Maynard and 

Mr. Baker? 

A. 

·Q. 

Ye~ indeed. 

Okay. All right·. 

MS. YOUNG: You can do the lights, 

if you would . 

Thank you very much. 

Q. (BY MS. YOUNG) Well, let me go back 

10 a little bit to what you based your opinion on. 

11 Was there a particular time frame 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

is 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

or period of time that you bas~d Mr. Payne's work on 

.out there from east Oak Ridge leading into the Y-12 

plant? 

A. He testified that his work 

activities occurred during the year 1983, this not 

contended by Mr. Maynard, so that was my ass~mption. 

Q. Okay. And did he ~- did you make 

some assumption based on Mr. Payne's testimony about 

how often he went out there, how many times, the 

length of time and where he ·went? 

A. Yes, he stated that he made --

three days a week, he came to work along that rail 

line and he testified on each of those workdays, he 

made two round, trips· from east Oak Ridge into the 
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1 Y-12 plant and back and he also testified that he 

2 spent 30 minutes each time he went back to the 

3 railroad at east Oak Ri~ge, he testified that he 

4 spent 30 minutes there moving cars around, walking 

5 around, doing what trainmen do, the kind of thing 

6 that Mr. Maynard explained to me, that he spent 30 

7 minutes is obviously approximation, it wasn't 30 

B minutes exactly but that's the assumption I used 

9 ·based on his testimony. 

10 I also used his t ·estimony that the 

11 main function of the runs out there was to deliver 

12 materials to the Y-12 plant inside that fence that 

13 

14 

you showed -- that was seen in that previous 

photograph, but on some of the trips, they would 

15 also make stops at industrial . facilities along the 

16 way to deliver equipment and so part of my 

17 assessment was to assµme that he indeed made some 

18 stops_ in an area where there may have been some 

19 industrial activity but I basically used the 

20 information that he testified to in his deposition 

21 about how many days per week, how long a time, it 

22 was approximately one year, how many round trips per 

23 day, how much time did he spend in rail yards on 

24 each trip, that kind of thing, I took his word for 

25 it. 
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.1 Q. Okay. Dr. Kocher, can you tell me 

2 the jury has heard from Dr. Dooley about what was 

3 called "bounding dose," did you do that in this dose . 

4 assessment? 

5 A. Yes, my attempt in doing a dose 

6 assessment for Mr. Payne from this radioactive 

7 contamination along the railroad tracks was to do 

8 what I call a bounding estimate, to come up .with an 

9 estimate of dos~ that I'm quite confident would be 

10 higher than the dose he actually received and I did 

11 this because I already knew from my 1990 report that 

12 it was virtually cert.ain that his dose was quite low 

13 and that's an ideal situation for doing a bounding 

14 estimate when you are quite confident that it's low. 

15 Q. Well, give the jury an example, if 

16 you would, about how you used a bounding dose or a . 

17 conservative approach, give the jury an example of 

18 how you gave Mr. Payne the benefit of the doubt or 

19 was were favorable ·to him in your dose. 

20 A. Okay. One of the things that 

21 Mr.·Payne did when he was in Oak Ridge, there was a 

22 very small switch yard in the east end of Oak Ridge, 

23 any of you familiar with it, it's called the 

24 warehouse district and there were four railroad 

25 tracks in this district, one was a through track 
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from the CSX mainline over by Melt:on Hill, and the 

other three were kind of spur lines and we knew from 

the radiation survey data that the contamination, 

4 the radioactive contamination was almost entirely 

5 along one of the three spur lines and so in order to 

6 give a bounding estimate of his dose, I assumed that 

7 all the 30 minutes that he spent in the warehouse 

8 district of Oak Ridge, he spent walking along this 

9 one track where the contamination was and that he 

10 spent none of his 30 minutes walking along any of 

11 

12 

13 

14 

these other tracks where there was no contamination 

and that's virtually certain that that's not what 

really happened. He certainly spent some of his 30 

minutes in uncontaminated areas, but I assumed that 

15 he spent his entire 3.0 minutes out there on each 

16 trip walking along the contaminated track only. 

17 Q. Well, based on your bounding 

18 assumption or your bounding calculations and based 

19 on the information that you've already described to 

20 us, do you have an opinion about whether or not --

21 what is your opinion about Mr. Payne's exposures in 

22 the area east Oak Ridge to Y- 12? 

23 A. The bounding analysis I did, I came 

24 

25 

up with in my judg~ent that his dose almost 

certainly did not exceed a value of 1 millirem which 

.Truesdel & Rusk. 
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David Kocher, Ph.D. - Direct 
, I 

is a very, very low dose. 

Q • Dr. Kocher, the jury and everybody 

3 in the courtroom has heard a lot about rems and 

4 millirems and picocuries and maybe some other units 

5 of measurements of radiation. 

6 Could you help us out here, tell us 

7 what - - put in perspective what one millirem is. 

8 THE COURT: We have already gone 

9 

-10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

over that. Unless he's got a different 

concept of it_, we 1ve done that. 

MS. YOUNG: Your Honor 

THE COURT: It Ls - - a millirem is 

still one-thousandth of a rem, we've already 

done that. 

When you say less than one 

millirem, is that the entire time that he 

was there? 

THE WITNESS: During 1983 in Oak 

Ridge, yes. 

·THE COURT: All right. Yeah, we 

have already defined that. 

Q. (BY MS. YOUNG) . Dr. Kocher, don't 

if you would, don't define what a millirem is for 

us, but could you put it in context? 

A . Yeah, I think when I do a dose 

Truesdel & Rusk 
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::· .'.,.. ·· .. , ! .- ~ .~ : . "·~' • • =.~. : . ·: .. ,· ' . • ""G~~ -·" . 

; 
t'~.ere 1 ·bu't that IS . a Whole' Other topic . . 

Q. . i~ th.ere . an !association between. 
!=:·: 1' 

emphy~>~ma and "1ung c'ancer.·?.' 
. . . . . ·' . ~ 

A . 
. ' .. 

Yes, there is. 

Doe$.-,.~mphysema . i:n.c+ease . one Is risk· 
I:, ' '' .. ··, , ;-: 

I ... Q.' 

.· t ~ , l'. I 

of getr,i,ng lung cancer?: 

A~ Yes, it does. 

Q .• . . Now I I . think you touched on . this 

brief],.¥' but I want to get you to talk a.Pout it, and 
. . . . 

then we~ · are about don~. But is there a relationship 

.b~~~~en asbestos . exi;osure· .and lung cance:r;? 
.. . 

A. L , In a. specific tyt.=-e· of lung cancer, 

l .' .. i.3 . :'. ' whi·~h· i~. ~~t;:~ t:~{ ~ia~sical ' iurig cancer' the.re is 
' . ',, . .. ·. ,.. . : J 

.what is .known as a mesothelioma, but that'~ only 

.. ; is certa"in· types of as~estos and ' under most unusual 
, ~•.• • •• ~ ' '"···• o· • ; .. :, ', I \ \ ' ! 

16 circumstances, but it '·S LllOt what · we call lung 

· i 7 · ca.ncer . 

18. . Q. That Is not what Mr. ·Payne h~d, , is 
' . 

l,9 . . it?. 

. 2.0: A. That · is not what Mr. Payne . had . 

21 . Q. Now, is it ever proper not :l.p. a 

. ·, . 22 mesothel"ioma · situation •.but in a regular broncb,ogenic · 

lun,g . cancer situation., . is . it prop~r to say that 

.2:4 asbestos played a role in causing that cancer? 

A. · Yes. 

;. ~~~r-".'!""'-'?.......,. ...... ----.---..... ...,...----..--,,...-...---...-------! 
Truesd.el & Rusk · 
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John Craighead, M.D. Direct 

1 Q. 
,··.,.... ··-· ·t:i 

Arid under what setting is it proper 

2 to make that diagitosis·:? 

3 A. ·When you have th~ · disease 

4 asbestosis, the· lungs are scarred extensivel.y so 

•' 
5 that it can be seen in an x-ray, and that's the 

6 8~itic·~·1 feature. 

7 

8 

... 
Q 

. ' 
10 

11 

12 

1:3 

14 

.15 

16. 

17 

18 

1 ·9 · 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q. · .why . is . i t important to first find 

asbestosis before you can, say that asbestos played a 
.. . 

r61e in. the tumor? 

A ~- Well, it's a · marker of very heavy 

and prolonged exposure . You don't get it from 

cutting an asbestos board sucp as a carpenter does; 

you ge~ it when' you work with asbestos day in and 

day out, over periods. of 15, 20, 25 years. And 

heavy exposures over long . p~riods , ~f · time result in 

asbestosis . 

There's n9 question under those . 

·circ:;:umstances that· ·it occurs ; . that lung cancer can .·, . 

. :~ 
·cause or · ..; ~: - I should . say contribut.e to the 

· ..•. · 

. development of - -'- excuse me, that asbestos can 
< • • • • ,, • 

co!it.ribu.te ·to the development. of lung cane.er, but 

that's the situation where the lungs are extenslvely 
.. 

·. scarred by heavy and prol onged·. exposure to asbestos. 

Q. n'/ -_ Crai ghead, i f somebody has a <: .. 

· lung cancer and th~y have been a smoker but they go 
. ·.· 

Truesd.el & Ru.sk 
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John Craighead, ;;. r.1 .b. - . Dire9t 
·-· 

•' ·.· . . . ...... . 
. . ~? . . ....... 

to the do.ctor i:.o . ~ .ee . lf _they have this other dise~se 
., .. 

2 
. . ' 

asbest.osi~ ··· ab_d tl1~·re i~ · ~o evide~ce of the 
.. ·. ;• · -,. 

· 3 · asb~st:osis, is it pr.oper to say· that in that· person 

4 the ·asbes_tos played a J;"ole . in causing the tumor or . . 
' (~=-; . . . ... 

s · 1is· tJ;i.at imprqp~i? · 

.6 

. 7 

,•; 

10 . 

•· 
11 

-: J 

12 

" 
13 

l 4 

15 

16 

':l;7 

18 

19 

20 

21 . 

22 

2'3 

24 

25 

" . .. 

A. That• .s .. improper. ··· 
• • ~- • ,> . -

Q. .' Is there 'literature tbat the 
' . ·"1 
supports your belief? 

A. Yes, · there is extensive literat.ure ~ 

. . . . ~ . 
:~nglishman that exhaustively studies . this issue . 
. . :· ·:·· . r:.-: . :·· 

.And . th:en .in a re:port that I made not long ago I 

cited four review . articles, oneof which that I 
., . . 

~~ot:e and "t'i1ree .t.hat were . "writt~n by. other 

sc1ie):lt'ist~ tb.~~ say" tlie .. same thing. 

They have· been published in what is 

kp.own as _the ·peer reviewed literature, and they have · 

· :oe~n , ca~efully· analyzed. 

Q. J?id you' see anything in Mr. Payne's 
' . 

. . 
medical charts that suggested that he had 

asbesto!;liS? 

A ,. No, I did not. · 

Q. If he didn't ~ave asbestosis, what . 

·ao~s · that tell you about the l,ikeiihood that 

a'sbes.tos ··playeO. a ;r-ole · in· .the cause of his lung 

·"· .... ---------...--.,...,.. ....... --..----------------~ 
. ~ .. Truesde 1 & Rusk .. 
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John Craighead, M.D. Direct 
. : ·. .., ' ':, , 

1 cancer? 
. .. 

2 A. l. don 1 t think that -- on that basis 

3 there's no evidence that it did. 

4 Q. Why is cigarette smoking so bad for 
. ~· ', 

5 you? 

6 A. First, we differ. Some people are 

7 more susceptible to the adverse effects than others, 

8 and there are over 3,ooo different constituents, 

9 there 1 s the gas pha.se, there· is a particulate pha~e, 

10 and . the particulate phase contains the whole series 

11 of carcinogens known as nitrosamines and as 

i2 polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons. And those are 
. ·. 

l3 carcinogens. 

14 But we have a whole series of other 

15 chemicals that can damage the lung substance. Some· 

16 of those are what we . know· as promoters, they help 

17 the polycyclic a:r:omati.c hydrocarbons do their dirty 

18 work and there.are q dozen of those. 

19 · · But it 1 s .the unique combination of 

20 all ' of th~se g_ases, .P,a:r:ticulates a,.nd chemicals that 

21 are . the ·basis for the adverse effects. And despite 
' . . ~ •' . 

22 . wh.at .the advertisers would like to tell you, 

23 filtering may reduce . the toxicity, but filters don't 

24 n·ecessarily prevent · 1ung cancer. · 

25 Q. You said when we first started 

Truesdel & Rusk 
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John ·craighead, .. M. D. - Direct 

1 

2 

talking, Dr." Craighead, that it was your belief that 

Mr. Payne had accllmuiated approximately 30 pack 

3 years of cigarette smoking? 

4 A. Yes, from what I could gather in 
.J 

s his depositio.ri. 

6 Q. . Essentially one pack a day for 30 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

; . 

years. 

What· did that 30 pack year history 

do to his. ·personal risk of getting lung cancer? · 

A. Well, it goes ui;:.. . It's a dose 

dependent issue·, and it goes up as the years pass. 

And there's good evidence now that if even if you 

quit, the risk . that you had on the day you quit, the 

risk ·of developing lung cancer, if anything 

increases as the years pass . 

And . there's something of course 

17 about -- about age in cancer, that it's more likely 

18 that older f ·olks are going to get cancer, and the 

19 effecti of the cigarette smoking earlier in life 

20 seem to be nullified as the time _ passes, as one 

21 grows into the golden years, so . to speak. 

22 Q . Now, . I think any of us who have· 

23 smoked have had a doctor teli us you need to quit 

24 because quitting will be ·good for your health. 

25 . · . Mr. Payne, the ev idence is 

Truesdel & Rusk" 
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John Craighead , M.D .. - Direct 
.· ' . . . i '1 l~ 

Mr. Payne quit smoking in about 1988. 

~as that a good thing for him to do 

for himself? 

A. Yes, I don't think it decreases the 

risk of cancer developing, but as we say, there are 
. . 

lots of different gases and there are irritants, 
. . . . 

there are acids and alkalides, ari··}· ... those enhance the 
. ~ . . . . . 

effects that result in emphysema and irritation of 

the respiratory tract. So, yes, quitting is 

approp~iate. Its major effect will be on the 

adverse effects of emphysema and the irritation of 

the lung tissue. 

cancer, unfortunately , the die is 

cast. 

Q. Dr. Craighead, based on everything 

you have seen in this case. and on your years of 

working in the area of cancer, do you have an 

opinion you can share with this jury to a reasonable 

degree of medical certainty as to the most likely 

cause of Mr ·. Payne's lung cancer? 

A. Yes .. 

Q. What · is your opi~:::.ion? 

A. I think it's high:ly probable, in my 

. opinion it's pretty d~finite that :Mr. Payne's lung 

cancer was caused by cigarette smoking . 

Truesdel & Rusk 
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Jo~-SE.aighead , ·, M.p \ .. - pir~ct 
~:. 

'· 
1 .Q . · bid -any diesel ·exhaust exposure 

2 -th:~t; .. ·Mr.. Payne riiigi1t ·. have ha c.1.,; play any role in the 

3 causes·? 

4 A. No. 

5 Q_ Did any asbestos exposure he may 
1 ;• 

; 1. .. 
1;. 6 have had play any ioie i~ the causes? 

7 A. I don't think so . 

~ 
,,{'. 

8 Q. ·:noc;:tor; you've b•:?.en on direct 

' ~; ;· 9 · ex~mination for about an _hotir. · ~ou•ve given us a 

;:~'. 10 ; nl.unber of .professional op.inions. -

11 . Let: me -·ask you, are those opinions 

·~, :·12. I• 

. ~ .. ···: 

l ~ 13 •t.o -a -rea:sonable degree of medical c~rt:ainty and are 

14 ' they al so the product of your best" profess-ional 

15 : ·judgment? . 

16 A. Ye's ·, . they are;. ·· 

17 Q. Tha.nk you, Dr. Craighead . These 

. · 18 gent l emen may have some questions for you . 

·19 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

·20 BY MR . · GI LREATH: 

21 Q. Dr. Craighead, you gave up your 

22 pathology practice. at hospital s in 1992, is that . 

2.3 ·. right? 

24 · A . Yes, that's corre ct. 

25 Q. You have not. taught any .. classes on 

Truesdel & Rusk 
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John Craighead, M.p. Cross 

epidemiology? · 

A . No, only in - -. well_, you see, 

pathology is the study of disease, so epidemiology 

is intrinsic to the study of pathology . 

Q. My question is you've not taught 

. any cl.asses on epidemiology? 

A . Not formal cla·sses, no. 

Q. You have done. no independent 

studies on . asbestos-containing products to determine 

how much asbestos dust gets released 

A. Is released when? 

Q . You have done no independent 

studies on asbestos-containing products to determine 

how much asbestos dust gets released when they are 

used? 

A. Tf\i;it's not my ar.ea of study. I 

depend on industrial · hygienists to do that. 

Q . So you de~end on others to do the 

. study, and then you give you~ opinions, is that 
::· 

.right? 

A. With regard to .the release, yes. 

Q. So you're an opinion witness here 

today? 
'.l , .: . 1 . ." • .. I · 

A. No, "insofar as the quantitation of 

. release from ·a ·particular . product, , the industrial . . . . . . . ~ 

,• ( 

.. . T:tuesde-1 & Rusk . 
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:1 · · ' · hyg·ieni-st .has tJ;le ·:tools that allow them to provide 

· '. ·:~ . · .. '.~~~~ti;~~ -i~;~ · - .i~f~.-~i~io~· ;· ·. ~· ]: ',.don't do ·those. types of . 
. ' . . . 

3 

: ~ - ~ : . 
. ,. s 

8 

9 

i'o 

. · ' 

~lg}f~. You · read .their studies ·and 

: ·- -~.h~~ \-~~-. ~~y~ : ~~i'µt:6;~~ ···:_ 
~ - . - : -~ ..... 

A. !n part related tQ my other 

experie.nce_ 
. . .. . »4 ...... -~ .: ~-· .... : • :· f :. ~ . . ·:. . ' 

·, ·t .. · . 
· ... ·.· · ·Q·. 

., .·._._;:· 

And · .tha.t ~ s wha f you are dp ing · today 
. ... 

is you' ,.ar~ ~-±vlng l.l~ ·1~u~ op,iril.c;n, .right? ' 
. ; 

.. ·: . .;. / .. . ;..· ' .. : :. ;'.,I~·:.-:~::~-. : . _ .. ·. . ; '·'. · .. ! 
··· A~- .Yes . . 

. . . '·' 

. :; ...... 
i,.• ii 

." ' t • , , ; • ,/' :" •; • ."! I • 
.• \ . . . . . 

:. An:d · s.:i..I°ice i996 your" practic~ has 

' ~ i 

1.4 

16 . '. 

'i7 
·. ' 

. : ·l8· 

19 . 

26:· 

. 2i'. 

22 

23 

' .- . ' ! .. ~ 

A. · 
·· · .. . ,· ;1 • ',' I 

Aiid your ·opinions · : Q. in all . of 

• ..:o. ~ . • ... . . . •• J. . • .. ... · . •. . : . · " '. . • .,; ' .. 7, " .. · -: .. .. 

A. YeS ,, i,-.-.·.- ... : . .... 

Q. As ·you are doing today. · .. 

A. .Yes . 

Q. YQu . give lectl,lres to defe·nse 

laWyers who defend a~best6s ~ompanies and railroads, 
' • ' .• · I 

you g·_i\."'e lectures . to . the_se la~er~- on how to defend 

cases . ._and have· i:n th~e . past? 

; .i\ . · I have on a few cases, . yes. 

Q. And . tlo yoµ charge .the same amount 

whei:i -:/ou-· g·:i,. Ve thqse- lecti,11;:-e~ as you do when you c.ome 

Tl;:'uesdel &; RUsk 
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1 • That's 
:t I .• · 

2 

3 

a very old stuqy; l9S5. 
.· • I • 

:'..: : ~• ·~· .l . . ' .... '4!- • 

.·, ;:,· Weil, you were working at · the same 
~ ... . .• ":'i': ·. ~ . . . .. ; ' 

.. Q. 

' • I , ~ • . • ' i ' • ·.! .... ' 

· · time·. as . Dr. Selikoff _did the study? 
. :. : .. .... 

· s A. :'._ Y:es., and-.we criticized that ~ather ... 

~ .. .. 
6 . "vi~orqusly at the time. 

/ . " .. ·' . 
7 Q .. And he was stu~ying asbestos at 

· • 

8 · : Mount ~inai. 
. . . 

9 :· A .. Yes, ship.yard workers, yes , 
.··. i ...... 
10 ·.- ;,_~- ~1'J.. : f'~-~~ of asbestos can . ,. . '. -~ ... 

. ' ll • · .Q. 

i 

.1i C"ontrib,ute .to lur;i.g cancer, correct? 
.. 

i2: . . A .. 
.. ' . .. . . . . . . . 

i'f. ~:tiere is · a · sufficient exposure 

l·,.,. 
13 

. 1.: :-

·: b'.:> ' rE;!s.ult in asbestosis, to the best of my 

:;.;.1 
14 . knowleqge, yes·. 
' 

.. 

15 
. ·: :· .· • • • ~ ' • ~ I • j • . • • .' • 

. Yo~ •ve ·testified before that in 
.. : ~ . . .-; : ::~ 
l, '• 'I• • ., • 

Q. 
·· . -:;.· ·. . .. . 

J,.:6 theory one fiber of ''. as:Oestos alone can cause 

17 mesoth~lioma? 

18 ~- Yes, ·in theory . 

·19 Q. Of cour~{e, you saw a tbyroid cancer 

. • 
~o in Mr . ·. P°"yne, didn't you? : · 

:,?l A. -Yes. 

2·2 ·Q. And that's caused by radiation, 

I .. '2~ 

2-,1 · 

' iSn 1 t i:'t? 

A .. . . That's one of the . contributing 

J . • : ;~_~5 ;'c-a\ises ,· yes. . It's not the only cause. . Most 

.____. ...... ~--~·~~~~~-....... ~...-~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ .. . , . 
Truesde.l & Rusk 
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' John Craighead, M.D. - Cross . 

individuals we don ·, t kn.ow what the cause was. 

Q . ·' :t .' belieV:e since ·you started doing 

. consulting work y~u've handled over 5,000 cases, is 

that right? 

A . . Roughiy that, yes. 

Q. That·, s all I have, thank you. 

MR. BAKER: I have nothing ·further 

of this witness. 

THE _COURT: Thank you, .Doctor. You 

can be excused. We 1 11 · take a 15 minute 

"break and then come back. 

(Jury disn:iissed from courtroom) .. 

T~E - COuRT: something you want to 

talk about right now, Mr .. ·:Saker? 

MR. BAKER: Yes, .Your Honor. 

THE ~OURT: What is that? 

MR _. · :SAKER: Mr. Gilreath, 

plaintiff 1 s court~el, asked this w{tness 

about thyroid ·cancer. This court has 

excluded thyroid cancer as·a cause through 

the .deposition testimony of Dr. Manning and 

others. 

As we all . know, everyone concluded 

_that he could not have thyroid cancer, that. 

what .they thought was a lesion turned out 

T:t:uesO.el . & .Rusk 
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, · , . ·1..' 
.. . 

' · ~ •' 

. . ..... ~-. ~ : .. ~ :: . · .. 1 ·. :. . t: .' t'', ' ~- : . • . . ' .• . 

· · :not -bo·'! l:)e a les.ic:m. ._-, .. A . . ,· 
" ' 

.. _. " · ~~:w : ~ ~ ~~d a·~ a ~esult of an 
. ;. 

•' . :· .·_,q, •. .... · , .......... - ·: 
agreemen·t ·that ·was reached that no one would 

at.tem~t "t.o d~mon~t-rate to .this jury that. the . . ,· . . '• . 
:' ;· 

· thyroid pro:Q:Lem w~s. re,lat~d to radiat.:i,.o:h 
" 

and th~t Is not been . part.' of this trial . Yet 

.today. Mi:. G.iireath comes in and asks this 

witness .about ~hyroid canc;:er, and th~ 
. . . j. • • .. . • • .. . 

witnes's : ~est'ified;: 'that " thyroid .6anc.er can be . 

caused 'by radiation when evi;,ryone knows that 

the'- m~~ .' did not have thyr~'id. cancer , 

everyone ;~ows. ·' th'at it was a nonmalignant 

'les'i 'on and that h·ad n~thing at all do with 

his, · t:t-~atment, nothing at a;l.1 to do with his 
... • ,. ! ; . . ' 

. death, yet he brought t .hat out in front of 
. . ' . ~ ' 

thii::; jury. .so I must move for mistrial as a 

result of what was done just a .momep.t ago. 

MR . . GILREATH:. Your Honor, I didn't 

ask· him . if t:qe man died of thyro.id canc~r .. 

if thyroid cancer caused his death, I wa:s 

only te~ting the cr~dibil :i.ty . of . the witnE;!ss . 

.MR. BAKER: You asked hi_m, I wrote 

it down, did he _have thyroid cancer? And he 

. ~aid yes , 

. MR. GILREATH: . No, I . said d;id "YOU 

.. ..;:.__..,...., ___________ ..,.,.. ...... ____ ------....-....... --":",-..,._ ..... __. 
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· .. · .. 

find thyroid cancer. 

MR. BAKE~: Oka~/ '." Did you find 

thyroid cancer. 

I just cannot believe that this has 

happened. 

THE COURT: What do you want me to 

c;io? 

. : ' 
MR. BAKER: You are going to have 

to grant a .mistrial because he brought ·that 

up un~ess you· f~gure out some way to cure 

it, maybe a statement to.the jury, a 

sta~ement to the jury that he did not have 

thyroid cancer. There's absolutely no 

evidence 
.. .. 

THE COURT: Okay . We'll tell the 

jury that. . .. :· 

Like your previous motion, we'll 
. . 

··· take · rio ·action . 6:ri ·that ·at ·this time. 
; .. 

THE COURT: So we'll see you back 

in a few minutes . 

(Off the record at 9:56 a.m.) 

(On ·the .record at 10:09 a.m.) 

MR. SHAPIRO: Your Honor, can I be 
.. , . . 

heard before .Mr. Baker asks for the 

particular instruction? 

.. Truesdel & Rusk 
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Your Honor, the part that I want 
. ;.. .: 

you t6 '·be aware of is that Dr. Craighead 

gave a ~ wr~.tten report to the plaintiff ·in 

this case and, Your Honor _. .. in his written 

re~ort, Your Honor, he· stated in June of 

2006 a PET scan demonstrated hypermetabolic 

activity in the region of the tumor in the 

left lung, but incidentally showed up a 

hypermetabolic nodule in ~he right lobe of 

the thyroid. A fine needle aspiration of 
. . 

this nodule demonstrated .a papillary thyroid 

carcinoma . I have examined this speci~en 

and concur. And he cites the biopsy. This 

is in ·the written report provided by the 

defendarit to th~ plaintif~. 

Your ruling, Your Honor, as we 

understood it, was that the plaintiff's 

experts had not discussed thyroid cancer as 

a part .of their· diagnosis on our burden of 

pr.09f, .but .the plaintiff is entitled to test 

the credibility o~ defense witnesses, and 

tqis is one of their witnesses confirming 

thyroid carcinoma. So . the way Mr. Baker is 

proposing thi;:; instruction is that he didn't · 

have.thyroid ·cancer. 
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· · That's a fiction. Their doctor 

said h.e had thy:r;oid carcinoma.. 

~ow ,' we.c:Ion't object to you reading 

to the jury that the plaintiff's experts in 

this cas~, or physicians, did not discuss 

thyroid cancer as being connected to this 

claim.: But it's not true ·· to say to the jury 
. . 

no one .diagnosed thyroid cancer. And I'll 

off'er th'is report " into evi'dence ·for 566 for 

identific.ation, - Your Honor , the report of 

Dr. Craighead. Thank you . 

(Exhibit 566 marked for 

identification) . 

MR. BAKER: Well, first, 

plaintiff's own expert said he didn't have 

it. All the, doctors said he didn't have it. 

It went away. They know t.hat. They know .. 
I 

that it's not cancer, and yet here they are 

trying to convince this jury that it was . 

This is the instruction that we ask 

the .Court to .read. 

_ ... I ·ii?.struct you !;:hat Mr. Payne did 

not have thyroid cancer . 0 That is the 

truth . . "I remind you that it~ own expert, 

Dr· .. Frank, testified .that · plaintiff did not 
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I inpt::.ruct you· to . have; thyroid qancer. :· ". · \ . . , . 
. .':. . .. : ~. . . .. ; t 

di$.r.~~~J.~ . ~iai~t~.f.f 's ~ .i~~ .. of que3ti.oning 

regarding thyroid cancer and radiation. 
. . ~. • 'l • . • . .. 

. . ' . 

ThiS; ·was ' ah ·,i':mproper line of questioning by 

.· plaintiff's" ~~un~~1 · ·. a~d · i~ · not at' all a part . 

Of . ti-ii~ . ·~aSe, II 

.·.,. 
I · sub,rni t this for ·· the Court 's · 

.considera'tion, and ask tha t ·"that be made an 

ex~ibit ~or... :i,dentification. 

MR. s·HAPIRO: For the reasons noted 

we obje9t to the precise language there, 

.Your Honor. 

. (Exhibit 567 marked for 

identification)· . 

(J\n:y · returned to courtroom at 

10:12 a.m.) · .·: .. · : ·.,-. ·. 

(END ·OF VOLUME XVI) 
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THE COURT: Be£07e we get to the 

next witn,ess, in the cross examination of' 

the last ~itness, mention was made of the 

term thyroid cancer. As you previously 

heard, there's no claim in this case that 

2325 

the plaintiff. sui~~red from thyroid cance~ 

or· that that caused him anything that is the 

subject matter of this case . 

So who is your n~xt witness? 

MR. BAKER: Your Honor, I propose 

. to read certain portions of the deposition 

of Mr . . Payne that was taken on October the 

2nd, 2ooa. 

May I proceed? 

THE COURT: All right. 

MR. BAKER: The 'plaintiff, 

Mr. Payne gave a deposition .on October 2nd, 

2008 •. 

THE COURT: This is a different 

dep~sition than the one that was previously 

·presented :.to rn~. . . 
. . . · ... 

MR. BAKER: And after being duly 

.. "~worn .testifi°ed as follows, at Page 5, 
:···" '.···. · .... . 

· Line :4 .. through 6. 

(Whereupon, excerpts from the 
:: . ~-,;,. . . . :':' . .. . 

. . ~. 
'' . . 
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